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T e wfafer srenf uRadE gEsar daT
Y T AR Ha EId qUT ATEeETs Jfiehdn
IR 6 SR B | FFoHTRT Toed Jhg ™ ST
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s TEIY, Iehg® aAT T HTOT T&IY (Regulatory Fees, Charges and Renewal)
STT. UH.TH. ATgH-HeTIqeR QEr THRUT ook &, 3 376 ’% S THIET JUAT i@l TR Hamed &,
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YIS g7 Tl SUHT & |

Treeherte! fed qur Samar TEida @ qeit et
THAR HATEE T TS UIT STV HEITehT F9HT
AT TTEFeEEET GAYT e TTOHT o faear
T gt Hieag B | HaTeTeh HTATRT FUHT FHFIIT
ATHAT UTehe®as PO Afeded T ST
IR EIHT AR S | ATEHGEA FFIRT foIshl
FeT qAT UTEeh YT haeedry TPt daT @itg 1 o
AThSTEE SIS T T T T8 U, TH.,, I T HieTget
gat sfeerr giaames FEOTr ToATe =T SITUHT §
T famr aweTgeRet faerme, afmrs T gamEr e
feuepr & | AT TSI ToSTTTHThT T TTEhe&aTe
T THTETEEATS HHo-Tel JHIH e 18 TR
S | FFITRT TTEh HETTHTARERT ST SFareel 3o
TR TTeeh ST FaT T ST HohoTHT HEeaqut
iRt frafe e = Froier favare fauer @ |

B CEIRCCIF

FOHIT FATERETE YaH T fafeer faEr der
GFeTEITERehT TATEIRIT G FalTE ST, HoheraTenT
Shifeus! g | I HFUATE T 7T¢ HIHIA J&H T
qaT AT iaEreERl SRR fafv=T ArermTd 1d
TAT TSS ST B | G TR a Sfeaiiad ATeanes
T YeTEHT T & g |

YA TEhT TEAATE FEITAT
3T ITHIHICEATS hFITen] HaTeeeh! dTRAT ggiad

FFIHIHRT JTETE qAT HIE q=ATA

oAl a7 SR wfafuel sgar wEnT SR oW
ANTRERETE HaTohT SRAT GEfad T qT HaTHETE T
YBfaHT If ST TNEdT g8 TSRS & | TEhH,
FOHS, AT qUAT  ATSASSIAT  IUHIUTEEh]
T feh afetden! aftremT JeETse quT ATt
oSTTEHhd JoT JaTe T SaradTias & feh 3
THTIRIT §a STEEh! & | I FUATS T Tq HroTer
YT STRAT ASHTEE TAT TR TN AT Goslele®
(BEgH, T, gemm, feides, g2ga o) uhd
TTesharells gt YaM T, Tl g~ qor 4amvare
A% ThaTeiier e ST & | FHFaHIehT JeTse quT
TSR TosTTTHThd Y& TR HTeATS 376 THTHRT
SIST JHTEEATS o919k UiEdT TR T T
TAET @l T | FHIOHIRT ATETZE qAT ARG
HTTISTe HosTTeTeen! fefeh TFTaTdar & |

Website: www.ntc.net.np
Facebook: NepalTelecom.NT
Twitter: ndcl_nt

Instagram: nepaltelecomofficial

YouTube: Nepal Telecom

LinkedIn: Nepal Telecom

QEUATH &t

FOeT g T fafver Sar-giaemesenr anar o
ITHIHIEEATs THUHTEHTHT T JH-EHIAT gefad
TS 35! T | FOHTSr fehe wfa=mT USSD Flash
Message, End of Call Notification HTCI%‘T"I'&-T m
T UG T+ R ST TETUHT S |

CICIES R

T T EaT @NE qUT @NEUTETq, STavaeh GediT 3ueiee
TS 32T GeJohehl I~ TATTEEHAT Tohl gLESAR
FRATATEE  qUT UTEh HaT HEe@HThd  HHd-iel
T HATEE T T3S IR S |

Maan fashi, wwew qan vt

FIOARI  FAT-giauTeE  SWNT Eet  geer
STTISH, HaTeEh! SRAT GHiad T qoT 317 ATawh
TR EE THIETIETETHT 3TaTsY T3 U, UH., e,
TUfSeRT, TR STEAT ATEIHEE ool SATIehEaHT
TRINT T STUhT & | AT ITHIHIEEUT Tioieh T T
HTEAHEER! T Soaied & Jia-s T JTaTs 3T
THTIHHT SHISHAS Hro-T BRamefier e AU |

FHIT AUTe et T (Nepal Telecom APP) HThd
fafy=r daT-glaamessr anAT TEkTEAs  SIHHRT
T3 TR T | AEheEells HESToquT SRR
Juetsey T T fafi= Sar-giaer wem T+ Jiemger wamt
fafr=r 7ot glaumes ov iesr 1 wHRT TUe
Sfererwent Siugy, Higiony, diuedid T ugiaug,
TR AT 3T YaTewehl SRAT SRR JTed
T, Wreheles @iE T, faet fad e 3= &t gar-
GIeTes ITANT T+ Afehw | TTeeharieh] HESIaTeh! aATHT
TS ZfeTehweRT HIaTSel qT JedTse TR Tat @ud g
STSHT FHF I[ooh eI ST TTTERT & | AT TT Google
Play Store {iOS APP Store TT 3T T B |

El EFEF, q aéaq Rok /0%



FEAIHRT JATHT, TE-JAThHT TF F=AT ST
forTeet AT FHEAT T ShFdTeRT fafT SaT-glaues
Frawe ST JaTg T Tl 3 |

UEh e Fegd
e fereRmer ST HaT T gl gt et
ek YT HgHThA Ui A T3S ATTH! & |

3BT =0T Aldaeb! ulgare

FOHAA U T3S ATHT fafr= ames SiEd-
IS el T, W] USS UaT TG FHPuIeh
ITRIhT T HIAe® g | FFIIRT ol STFETHET &ar
fespiaTe U g T <¥.20 Ufawrd T 3= AT
24.%0 HTaRTd Eehl & | U O HaTe® ST bl
(Prepaid) dT e fefaeent TamT et felg wem i
T ST =T § T T8 JaTedT §id HhRIcHF

T IR & | HEcaqUl STASHIEE (ST - Hifedr
amenrelt, fepett 3&fY) T Sterfaegq T qer fasr
FHEOET G ST T TRt Wideears faferfientor
THA% JUTS Sfetsh JETad BohT |

TSR YT FATEETs T THTTRRT T3S SATerd arra
1 IR HET G 97 HEEqUl g AfEs |
T il HEIHIATS FATART ST TR qi e
g e | Fuaw af = i wraier STreeRT ot
didgeeh! Ufed 18 SUTEATeTHT Qs yiatfeht
Toreama faem sk 18 SR |

7 geefur swrofer sty femr uf st T
& UTEeheh! WRTETS TFETEH T+ To SATYHE Jares
STEd- 10T (Internet of Things) AT Machine to Machine
(M2M) 1=t fafr=T sara@faes S afgsm T
ST KIS qF T 1 UTfeehamT T 3 |

DAY/VOICE PACK




ddUol[dI AdIB=R

T FET Ui O AT ST HITCTRT I SHEfiey
g TdHan  ufafueesdr  sEeH TG ST
TTEhargEeh] Hod TFaweT TFqUl STavIehde® I
T A, ORI T IR $HUE] qREeER
TaT YA T3S U] S | TG FHehl AThT fafa=T
gfafaar st fafay daeE  Suesy  TUSgET
oy favaesTAT 3uetsy Adan  gfatummha &t
ST HATEEETS ST HTHT T HTIHT TaeT HiHT T
1T = RETSET tedr et S |

IR AR &l faw T fawqmr #feag a9
Hefd ISR 3 Tehe®eh! 3TIR TR,
HEANT T HET T Wl & | R FUS 3% ATGH=T
I TTEheEe] ATYWT HUTA JfetehH Heleheh STV
TESAR HaWE §T O%al WUHN & { JEEITH
HhAT T SSTRAT AT HIIH T ITHAT A& TTeeht
AT s1geeaT et it afeer @1 aw st
FIOHIT ST et fafi=T wfafueeamha Suctsy
T3S STTTHT FATEE TETIER Tohl & |

§ATSH dell TATHATH Aal

HTIHA €A SfARH (PSTN)

T ESAR HaTehT ATt fa. 8. 2jws AT suahr
fEs v R T aUUls ey H@T 9IS ¢ afg
AT HAT HAETIROT Uil URNTHT HHd AT
TS | afeauT TieaT ufeddesh Foier qoT SeETerd
fefsteet yorefmT strenfia daT ye™ Mt & | Froe
T IR HA 03T THEASIEEATRT HAT USH
Td IMHHT S| dehled TDM Based VTS 1P
Based JUTTC(HT ET=RUT 91$ &TeT IP Based Soft-Swith,
Media Gateway g% HoTITHT ehT &1 | 1P gfafeHr
TYTRA Next Generation Network (NGN), Softswitch
AT Access Network HT%d Voice, Video & Data (Triple
Play) HdT U8 T+ &e TRT Ufafer Sar=aaor Soehe! |
Multi Vendor Equipment JTd& T gl T HH GEAT
U EET W& T dichl HUshIet Ti STeTehl NGN HT
YT Fedeh HEHTRT AT AR g sfaws | &
TDM Migration TRETSHTS =T NG THIT-SIEE Ui

Access Gateway o FIawTIT AEehahT & | IR )
s awHas wrier fefated deres yem e
STTEEH T |

HTIRHA AT 2 FTRH JqT JTsd AaEE

n  wrr/ Al st et aar

e 8. €1, (CLIP)

dfehg @I (Locking Code)

el gi=ee (Call Hunting)

3 U1t & (Three Party Conference )
ol ZHH (Call Transfer)

& Afee (Call Waiting)

g faeftg (Home Metering)

tfsfyuds smfers (Abbreviated Dialing)
JHIT el (Wakeup Call)

&ehel, STD, ISD el (ISD, Budget Call, 1424,
1445 31iq)

Afed a1 Far

Sit B (SIP) JaT

TSHIEE Wl BT JaT

e Hiee fafqe aar

TSI Tl

&8 T JuTer feHeT Fiber To The Home (FTTH)
AT Ui SaT5H AT SHSSATS 372 ol Hou AT
TATgHe e © T fehe wfawsmr ¥ 78 fafummsd Hfafuas
[T (IPTV Service) T Y& THdwh s TR S |

TTHIUT &[T EE AR TfafaTha Ra=A aar
(VSAT Services)

awTehT 31 g T fashe fimifeteh Tae® STet desreqnT
TSR FATE® UG T Afehad IedT TIHEEAT T
SHATATS U SR HaTeh! UgEHT GATSERT dTHT
I Satellite Backhaul ATHA VSAT Service Y&
TG SATEEHT S | ATIhT et T et ufdwher g aar
TITEET U JaT IO ! Toa & hEq-T
o e B T fa.d. 203 @ide 2 T (2%
TS 2R¢R) HT HIRHTT HFUUT Shrghl TATIHT TR
TTATETHT HETT 78 ThfeHehT TaT UaT 718 STeRah!

T | JHeRT ST o, ST qUedT JaTemHT

iffeR ufdaaT o4/ vg




el G 37T Aeft WehTehT STeTEITHT FaTfed ase&HT
AR Foa HalT TATS SN HIAHT HEANT TATSH T
Satellite Tfafer T 3 TTEhRY e SRR |

CIDEG IR I EC R
Sfroauw gfafee deaga &

U dfedded SUHUH (2G) TR daT AT
et fufd Roue Ot MG 20 T FRAEERE
fafraqeaar g€ Mer & | JEvETd GSM Service AT
ylaferraerar & aiadT dadar © | e Sfasaa
=TT qEdTeRT T an ufafr 4G/LTE @& fafd 003 @@
29 (2017/01/01) HT FHISHTST T TGHTHT F&ATd TEhHT
09T SFE 24 (2019/10/02) Td IIATHETHT 4T
Jiaftrehl 4G/LTE (LTE Advanced) ¥dTehl %S &=
qUHT & | ST 222 TR Sugeae dar faedn
TRUHTET & A YSIET T/ e Lhoo WETEE!
T SIATE e A 9T IR TERE S |
T <4 TSTeat™T 4G/LTE Sament faeam miwent & |
AR HISTS HTafer STt T e 3ueise & :

e dor Tt aar

THTHTE T

faf\g=T wehmanT W] TS TaT
g/ diets gemae Ufag dar
T U Bttt dar

HIAREET (CRBT) 8T

T HLATS /el A12S/ FHed Bleg ddT
AT IS IT (CUG) HaT

T T ATHYF DhoTee

I VATEE

Hdtey gfafest A dan

Juret 2ferermet fufa R0€R/ 20/ %3 Sf@ comA ufafemr
AT IeUg AR qaT FIBHEITE TSI

ADSL, Leased Line dT dmigd ufaRr: 4GATE,
WIiMAX, 3G, EVDO, EDGE HThd SISeIE 32
YT e TEhT | I SFeish ATHRAT HamITeieeans
Tl fafmrdd JeT YeM T G Hieag Bl DT
ST T uf @ 7 | 't ATt fesher fafe=r
wfafmThd UeT et STeT HaTew i e 3 |

JEIATSA ST 4T
foeg argw aan

m  FH F st afere g 1 fas AT g
& TR 2 |

m AT AMMNE HEAEEAE dled T4 Here
Dedicated Data Lease Ufafersh ISLEIN) Hrea sl

[ ] WWWWWCOpper
Pair TN T AT AT 3UTH THISUHT D |

m  IuHT fafcs stfteshet ®ger W& Wi fast ar
YE T A I SErednT Wehl © | R fetstenr
GHATIT SQT SATSITY ATaYTH T4 TTeheeals
T muferamT stfesher wEaHGA forer ST
TET T TR & |

B NG-SDH &I SEMU® Internet/intranet feTsT
dicheshl &ATd VTR T ADSL TaTRl TS
ADSL st 8T ufT T 3Tt 8 |

m I8 T FE ISP (Internet Service Provider) T
Enterprise Business House ﬂwﬁ Domestic dT

International TeTst Gfehe T e & |

9TE ARl Rows FIfdeh ¢ Taei@ AN g1 T
gee oo el Tege "R © | ufed <Han
493 FHeMITH &HATHI HaT IUASY TISIEHIHT 3TeT
=T R ey emdraie Afr urfafiss st aere
HUHET ST 9 &Rl §aT 3uAed TS | 0%

U7 HodTe TehT &l | deohlel oIl gEsaR
HATeh! T STehT forshe TS G0 I=A1ST AT JaT
ST TITEeh T Tt STuenT fora |

STeT AT

T R000 H H HleATETe AU Setehiel TR B
ARAIE o doohlcd THIhI Faq  SHA-31T
glafmT ST getie Jamehl geara ek PRI |
yfefermr susRr foeprer SET JuTe Sfeuet g i
TorvaeamdieuaT y=ferd T Fa=an drdtea gfafa: FTTH,

HTAHEH Internet Leased Line d@T Intranet Leased
Line 3T el TTEeh HE&AT R4 T ¥< WohT & |

LEELE R

UTEsheh! SI-ECHT RTEehah! ST TR e
ATSTATHA I SaT59 YTehT STATST SIS~ 32 Tl
YW T Gfer fdfer I ADSL Service & | I T
0% i THGEHT R AT 2 &K © T ¥ TEh
R & |




TR T qar

FUAT MG AT Jedehars o ufafeenr
HIEEHATHT WaETTT T/ Jqal 8 (e Siesars
3L TRl HTTATS HEIol e 99 & T 3=
ST HaT YSH T 3e3IehT AT il FTTH
Service HSEITATHT TATTHT B | R06% FHTideh HET-AEHT
FTTH JaT 3T=HTd 22 89K R T %% UTeeh ol & |

fau fisfiga (siP PBX) &

TEHTEE Tl B (AFS Toll Free Service)

T AT YT TRT HEHEITEEeT JITRERT SITEAT SR
T ITETREAT USE I W TEEHTRG SO
TR g | ford =niste srerfq et T warer AwE
T 3BT TaTel heraradehl oo fa+ WUl §aT aT
FEAICEA; TSI FET UEHEEHHE g el
SIS T 8T USH T AT {47 b e § |

M ® (SIP Easy Call)

o T ST GEETT TUT ST YA ST
T aferq wiwsRr O FaTr AuTer feedHel Rouy
AIMTERTE TSaTEHT ATTEhT & | FHIL FSThAT ST
TUHT TS T PABX @I PRI Line T8 TTdeITo
T 3TTAT ATSUhT IH HaTeh! & THIgaT ! Copper
Network HT 3TTa%9%h &1 TgHEIh HFUI AGTEEAS
T3 HrEaEre fowurtud ™ @it T EiEl e
Broadband Intranet/Internet Leased Line Service d¥T

Voice HaT HoaTe T Tfh 5 |

JEIAA AT aar

FHI I BaTa%h GSM, CDMA @T WiMax
giafer FeaTe H T caehl @ W I g wiafommea T
TRAAT ST HaT U ITAST TS JTUHT B |

4G/LTE Data
3G Data
EDGE

EVDO Service
WiMAX Service

5T USS AATES (VAS):

TESER aThT ARG STTURd qLEsaR gfadr
S-S, ST U7 THUAUE! AT 3qeisel
TR fafih AaTe® ¥ AT TS J4TeE g | Autet
el ST SfwiT Aarah T aRAed STt
T fAemisiRT g T HAeE  ATEheEds

TS T3S TR B |

FATATZAAR
TRAATET  JARTd AU JfaeAd  Efatea
AT TaTe® IqTs TUH! 3 |

§C{Hh] YR SIP (Session Initiation Protocol)
T AT 1P Call T @feh a7 TaT SAra@Tiaeh 99T
FIOICT TSTATHT AT & | I HATATS Hrafier
SfSTPI svg AWeTe fashl faawor 16 usRr | ar
HATRT FARTehd E&eT STTEAT SHPR L Feiehn! TANTaTe
ORI JAGeh T A TAHHT STTHATS T
U HIHT T ST el T Ha] | A7 HTETe ST
qT AUTASTEL U B T afehes | fager ot et
STEAT Account HThd HUNER TS TIHETE T
TEAT ST TUTAHT el T Biehs | 3TThMeTE Hiamger
BFETE SIP App HThd U1 YIITT T &fehes |

Mfew g &= (Notice Board Service)

TS ATST THITAT el T SATTheeas U3 {31 Udeh-
T fague ST AT a7 TWTEehil G5 | AT HaTeT
TTEehel SATRAT ATTeH STSHT T FEAT T HrauTes SAThal
BIFHThA (hE T Ha T A7 AT el T Afthel
I YT G IS | A AT ST TS
BT TTEFEEATs 0T f1:3[ch U & T HaT JanT
T F I9 IURURE SISH TJued | Afed ag dar
ST HTHTATEERT ScqTGTaeeh STHRT Y& T+,
JEROT T, AREET SrTeEeh! ISM dTicishrarere
STeRRT ﬁq, ot 8 TITher e Breaking News
3TfE TETOT T IR Rl B |

TE. 1.3, &4T (IVR Service)
m  2%00 (SLC Result Enquiry)
m  2%0% (10+2 Result Enquiry)
m  2%0R (TU Result Enquiry)

It afadeT oLk /9%



TR FIE 7¥% A TEAT A=ALET A

B TR HIE ¥Ry WThd HEAT T U el
T At

m  FroHEr faf= @aTe® (PSTN, CDMA, GSM,
VSAT, PCC) ST 2%¥R% &l YT T &l T Hich

m  I7 JGT TN THRT AT 0¥y Ui Country Code
T Ui sisafEden! B a7 AIAEd TR TET o
THIES |

FEALATAR

aiffer STafuHT FOHIT IRRETAs  TEEAE ST
URE YaTe® Hourad Mehl © | fafaer ferfamenr dames
U TS ILIITIET UTeT STeTshAeT Live TV, Video

Streaming, Music Streaming, Education App 3Tiq

YAEE SET TSR] ATBEHHT Foued Tehl © |

AR AT TTa AT 37 [A3Uh! S | BTl oI TaATHT

TQohT HAILGSTHICHS, HATE® dol 3ol TiWsh |

®  Music: Daami Music App

m  Video on Demand Portal: RMFunclub, Hungama
Music, Hungama Play

m  Live TV: Prabhu TV App, WOWTIME App,
MovieNMasti App

m  Eduction Contents: MiDas Education App

M2M Service

JY W FOHI Ul SATaETiash BGHT STRAT
rhﬁﬂ'sfﬁ Jeashen! WA Machine to Machine (M2Mm)
HaTRT AT IUSASY TEhT S | AUTeT Tz TTferertureht

JEeRT ATANTH AT TlhUH STTEITHT TTEhesals
TESTEIHT et T Te T T Shige TaTaTg f=atar
foual | IERCHA® gEmeeHT T e daeE
AT okt & |

fawg # T (Missed Call Alert- MCA)

Sfieaun qiete qur e Ao ke o T
QAT YA T | A AAHA FAWTRIRT Trl T
NUeh! ITSEATAT, J2aeh AU JTEAMT T e 3T
YU TGEIAHT FHeh! el AT Ui FEhT TRAT
THUHTEHTh AT thehd T3S | ITHTHIA SUB MCA
QT 1400 HT THUATH TR o7 *1400# ST T AT Tt

HATE T T |
Fax g &1 W (CRBT)

Sfreguy grete T e HiamgerdT A HaT 3Uesy © |
T YT TTeeheel STTHhel FTeeh! TaaTs el i
SATeh ZIehT AT A T+ HaFe | FHL 8 T i el
T TSR g T |

A HASAAHS Frdrd Qal

Qage, fufedr, afrerordr  daesdrs  aid
TG UST HATh! FIUT HoaTe TR S | HisTgereh!
STAFETE FaT I[odh Hiie TR IUcTse TIEUHT AT
AT UTeehesehl e & fde Ut © | wiiasmr
TTEheEh! Ty HeasK e fafw=r ferfamesr

wiea foet fifes gf@sHmERr anfit gfeet swomT 20
g famafed @7 4T g% THUSMET 8T 99 <o &R
e faedam swet T TRt ASHTRER fehe
ITTSIHT |7 WA Sooied Jig g STUeTEsd Tiush!
B 7 T fafa= SwgEer WA T Point of Sale
(POS) Devices TIT ITdATd &7 GPS tracking, Fare
Collection FATSHeRT ATt i fafir=r sro=eT gt
T FHIOHIT M2M Service @1 AT SIM 9T Mobile
Data Package & Yal TS TR B |

NT HATRT HETT T

Jue feteprel Sttt der M (viamo) &
AnheRl TR NT IR GO HaT 3UceY TRIUEhT
| AT THHTHRT AR fagew & SEmT Jurer
feTshaenT HiaTgaTha el T HiY, W, qUTER,
F.3okeomT W@ T @R | U SfeteReeRT
HIETSAHTHA 23200 HT el TR G ITeT T JTedt
AqTITE T ST IUANT T T1hes |

3TeA3EGAT dell 3Tea I ReeT

>
Hed AT GAT
Frer Singapore, Hong Kong I Doha (Qatar) HT
YT T POP (Point of Presence) HThd fafd=T
HAET THoAR HATIEIREEHT TG TR
3T FeA ARFUSH T+ TRl & | T8 T Roaming

HATAh R FT YIRAT Tohl 203 FeT HATIGRIHHT




grRBIaT T Standard T Discounted SWSHT ahel
HATRFYSH TS @ |

HEHA I TACATSHA AT AATHHT A T TG (o
FFgehT | ST STSTReRT STETET qUT HFI-fihT
AT Promotion 1 HRITTSHISTIAR  THI-HHIHT
WﬂmﬁﬁrﬁiﬁﬁlaﬁWUAE,Qatar
T HATHATHT T SR EEToR] HEehTIHT P
HEfed ST e et T Te e fHetusht
B | I TS G101 USTIHHAT ehT JuTetiesars
ICTETEIHT HTSaT JehT & |

ity feisg ATEA arht qeat

HRTTET ToohT SATITIE TTASH, FHelTaeh e e
T YR I ot TraIfeud e staiife fass
HAT TS T FFIHTST TUTANTT Heaeh STSM T+ qeiT
HAT ToaTeeRT AT STELIH 3T FE T TR S |
FFOTeT et Y% TEhT I Taae s T TR T < et
W TTEhEEATs AUl el e fase
TATSTHTDT ST TEIHAT T TRF IR S |

FTHRTAT Foel T =
T el U T e Tt e
o TRt afafaetaia @ &R e

SIUTT TR T T T | JHRT AT HFTeT T
T T detection tool T SF-AUTET FSTHT ITTSH
Automated System FAT T VOIP Call Bypass Fl'l'i»;
FEI=T T e © | 99 JATETE hETeRT STied

YT URERHT NI GIehT STaTTaT T Jhgar aft
HhRIcHE T Wbl B |

3T AAEH

FOHI AR TeH Wehr faf=T dar-glaameeadr
TRAT ATEHET T TFae TS T HaT HaTeals
3TV YWTEEhT SIS TS Tl AT adi HaT 3qaed
T 3 |

| AT AT gal dar

%) B FHHThT 3ucTed g1
B 2%%¢ : HISTEe QY qT THTE Fal
m 2Ro: fiugdit aregs

@) SAITREThA 3UeTeH g

2%0% (PSTN Bill Enquiry)

220 (GSM And CDMA Bill Enquiry)

23¢ (PSTN Phone, ADSL & FTTH Complain)
<< (VOIP Call Complain)

FoaRife
Afels Adr
3106 Al

For tariff and related information:
https://www.ntc.net.np/pages/view/roaming

©

NAMASTE PREPAID ROAMING
now available in INDIA and CHINA

@W.ntc.net.np 3 twitter.com/ndcl_nt [jfacebook.com/NepaITeIecom.NT {3 instagram.com/nepaltelecomofficial

Tk wfaaeT Rovk/ v




& ST, HIHTTSTeh o1 FTitdeh! AT et J=mde
TR SATTHTIE FITETHHT AT Th T Tftes

Treprent ®T GTATiSTS STRET AT REEEHT Had
FIT UTAHeaTT e HATURT & | S SATTHITH
[EDICaliereau I 2a o MR e S s L DI el )
yldergdr o<k 71e ATTHI S T GHIET IuqT qfT FreT
qEd qUAT FRHHEEAT  aar fager @
FET TEaYUl HRITE THh! B | JTATE TH HHTSIYET T
TraR et E9uT FHEoHwT Sfaars o1 gge T
Hed Tl & | SHr-iel ATaTheish ofed Ui 7 T 31T%
T eI aaT T AR T frfated e
TR aTHT T ST & |

JABE &

FIOT WAgg &=kl Taermaent @i fafr=T @asgs
FIFRTaT quT Seflars TR T8 STUs © | ad
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» FTTH Corporate User Pack

» CPE
Free: ) Installation
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's») P JTHAPA & CO.
m Mﬁ; ' Chartered Accounfants

54 Floor, Mirdhan Bhawan, 20 Floor, Shova Complex,
Naxal, Kathmandu, Nepal Kamalpokhan Kathmandu, Nepal
Phone noe 977-1-441 2201 Phone noc 977-1-d44 28887

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NEPAL DOORSANCHAR COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the Financial Searements of Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited (“Nepal
Telecom™ “the Company™), which comprise the Smtement of Financial Position as at Ashadh
31, 2076 (July 16, 2019, and the Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Staterment of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
vear then ended, and Notes to the Finandal Statements, including Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the mater deseribed in the Bany for Onalified Opinon
section of our report, the accompanying Financial Statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019}, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

The Company has provided loan o Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Lid since FY 2067 /68 as a
consortium member against the momgage of project assers, where the Company is holding 6%
shares as promoter. Total loan outstanding as on Balance Sheet date is NPR 9 585.68 million
including interest. There is no provision in the Memorandum of Assaciation of the Company on
the loan investment and as per Section 31 of Banks and Financial Institution Act, no other entity

other than licensed bank or financial insututions is allowed to execute financial transactons.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs), Our
responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Awditors Resgponsibilitier for the
Auidit of the Financial Statements secvion of our Report. We are independent of the Company in

accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our aodit of the financial

Nepad Telecom
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P J THAPA & CO.

C_R_I Mﬁﬁh E Chartered Accountants

5t Floane, Mirdhan Bhaaan, 2+ Floor, Shova Complex,

Naxal, Kathmandu, Nepal Kamalpokhan Kathmand, Nepal

Phone noe 977-1-44122010 Phone noc 97714428887
EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Insurance of Property, Plant & Equipment and Inventories: We drw the atention o

Notes Mo, 2 and 5 1o the Financial Statements relating o property, plant & equipment and

mventories, The Company has book value of Property Plant and Equipment excluding land and
motor vehicles as on Balance Sheer dare of NPR 21.33 billion, of which assets worth PR B.21
billion only have been insured against fire and earthquake risks only. All the inventories of the

Company are not insured. The risk management system including the data and system security

are inadequate, Our opinion s not modified in respect of this mamer.

OTHER MATTERS

Revenue recognition: The Company has used a billing system which captures, values
and records the revenue data generared from varous software, which are heavily reliant
on IT systems with processes and controls over the transactions. Based on the result of
the sample testing and mix use of manual and automated controls that are in place, we
have relied on the information generated by the system and process followed by the

Company for revenue recognition.

4G /LTE Network Project: The Company has made significant decision/investment to
bring into operaton nationwide advanced 4G/LTE nerwork to strengthen and expand
its business that is entirely dependent on successful completion of the project within the
agreed tme and qualiey. Separate contracts have been signed for Core, Radio Access
Merwork (RAN) 1 and 11 wotaling NPR 19.68 billion (NPR equivalent) excluding duties
and taxes. The project is scheduled to be completed in 12 months (February 2020,

Provisions of Labor and related Acts: The Company has emploved contractual staffs
and other outsourced manpower. The company has not ensured the implementation of
the provisions of Labor Act, 2074, Labor Regulation, 2075 and other applicable acts,

Nl Tol Anditar’s Report FY 2075.76 Pape 24f 5
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Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
—_————
5 Floor, Mirdhan Bhawan, 2nd Floar, Shova Complex,
Naxal, Kathmandu, Mepal Kamalpokhan Kathmandu, Nepal
Phone no: 977-1-4412301 Phone mo; 9771 -44 28887

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Mepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as
management determine is necessary to enable the prepamtion of financial statements that are

frec from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
abaliry to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, marters related wo Eoing concern
and using the gning concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends 1o liguidare
the Company or w cease operations, or has no realisuc alternative but 1o do so. Those charged
with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Dur objectoves are o obtaun reasonable assurance about whether the financial sements as a
whabe are free from material misstatement, whether due w fravd or error, and w issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance, but is
not 4 puarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with N5As will abways detect a marerial
misstatement when it exists, Misstatement can anse from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
ceonomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit
in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and mainmin professional
skepticism throughour the audit. We also:

& Tcdentify and assess the risk of matenial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
w fraud or error, design and perform awdit procedures responsive o those risks, and
obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatemnent resulting from fraud is higher than for one

Awditer's Report FY 207576
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* Dbtain an understanding of internal control relevant o the awdic in order to desipm audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing

an opinion on the effectivences of the Company's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropratencss of accountung polices used and the reasonableness of

accounting estumates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the poing concern hasis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncermainty exises
related o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continee as a going concern. If we concluode that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw anention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future

events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern,

® Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentanon,

* Obtain sufficient appropoate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the company o express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those chasged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audie findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identified during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement thar we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other marers that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. From the maners communicated with those charged
with governance, we have determined those matters that were of most significance in the audit

Nepal Tebecos
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REPORT ON THE OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. We have obrained sansfactory information and explanations asked for, which 1o the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpese of our audi

b. The financial statements including the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity, Statement of Cash Flows including a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
and other explanatory notes have been prepared in all marenial respect in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063, and they are in agreement with the books of
accounts of the Company; and the accounts and records of the Company are properly

maintained in sceordance with the prevailing laws.

¢. To the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, in the
course of our audit, we observed that the business of the Company was conducted
satisfactorily, and the Company's transactions were found to be within the scope of its
authoty except reported in this report.

d. We did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board
of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary to the
provision of law except reported in this report or caused loss or damage 1o the Company
of committed any misappropriation of the funds of the Company.

ey
Kathmandu, Mepal
Dare: 22 December X019 Managing Partner Proprietor
P | Thapa & Cn, AR Joshi & Co.
Charered Accountans Chartered Accountants

UDINAS1123CA0005LVIPBY  UDIN:191223eA00121AFa82
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Statement of Financial Position

As at Ashadh 31, 2076 (As at 16 July, 2019)

Figures in NPR

CurrentYear Previous Year

Ashadh 31, 2076 Ashadh 32, 2075
Assets Notes
Non- Current Assets
Intangible Assets 1 41,360,967 99,262,899
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 43,307,528,364 38,733,730,193
Capital Work-in-Progress 3 6,576,010,554 4,952,312,366
Investment in Associates 4 695,703,849 402,071,453
Investments in Corporate Shares 7.11 765,400,000 765,400,000
Term Deposits and Investments in Bonds 7.15 10,057,232,550 8,838,327,440
Deferred Tax Asset 21.3 6,427,468,562 6,066,490,432
Employee Loan 7.1.2 2,192,131,715 2,007,559,317
Total Non-Current Assets 70,062,836,561 61,865,154,100
Current Assets
Inventory 5 278,049,683 424,996,011
Prepayments & Other Non-Financial Assets 6 204,819,000 341,062,085
Current Tax Assets 211 408,933,059 1,457,205,166
Employee Loan 7.1.2 84,270,482 178,373,671
Accruals, Advance & Others Receivables 7.1.3 341,385,056 232,163,917
Trade Receivable 7.1.4 2,165,132,989 2,711,487,540
Term Deposits and Investments in Bonds 7.15 43,521,960,000 41,270,740,000
Cash & Cash Equivalents 7.1.6 19,007,031,019 23,410,997,112
Total Current Assets 66,011,581,288 70,027,025,502
Total Assets 136,074,417,849 131,892,179,602
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 9 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000
Reserve and Surplus 10 76,911,481,552 84,665,117,700
Total Equity 91,911,481,552 99,665,117,700
Non-Current Liabilities
Post Employment Benefits 8.2.2 11,521,020,120 11,305,643,764
Subscriber Deposits 7.2.1 1,929,304,322 1,939,289,820
GSM License Fee Renewal 7.2.2 8,975,923,781 1,958,161,866
Total Non-Current Liabilities 22,426,248,223 15,203,095,450
Current Liabilities and Provisions
Current Tax Liabilities - -
GSM License Fee Renewal 7.2.2 6,462,200,000 2,500,000,000
Provisions 7.2.3 3,321,597,782 2,282,601,893
Current Liabilities 7.2.4 8,165,597,098 8,562,797,570
Other Non-Financial Liabilities 6.2 3,787,293,194 3,678,566,989

21,736,688,074
136,074,417,849

17,023,966,452
131,892,179,602

Total Current Liabilities and Provisions
Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant accounting policies and explanatory notes are integral part of this financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Deepak Subedi
Chairman

Radhika Aryal
Director

Raj Bahadur Rawal
Director

@ IS GOSN FOT fetaes

Dilli Ram Adhikari
Managing Director

Dhanraj Gnyawali
Director

Pradeep Raj Upadhyay
Chief Financial Officer

CA. Prakash Jung Thapa
PJ Thapa & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Uttar Kumar Khatri
Director

Kumar Prasad Khatiwada
For Manager

CA. Achyut Raj Joshi
A.R. Joshi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Vishnu Prasad Kasaju
Director

Date: Poush 06, 2076
Place: Kathmandu



Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2076 ( 16 July, 2019)

Figures in NPR

: Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Notes FY 2075-76 FY 207475
Revenue from contract with customers 11 36,867,583,221 39,023,259,738
Finance Income 12 6,584,154,050 6,003,579,127
Other Income 13 387,300,745 242,646,092
Total Income 43,839,038,016 45,269,484,957

Employee Benefit Expenses 8.1 (6,409,320,514) (6,046,880,921)
Operation and Maintenance Costs 14 (6,746,884,893) (6,745,601,781)
Sales Channel, Marketing and Promotion Costs 15 (1,268,175,855) (1,643,028,335)
Administrative Costs 16 (1,381,565,309) (1,230,503,418)
Regulatory Fees, Charges and Renewals 17 (7,348,591,998) (3,536,544,689)
Foreign Exchange (Loss)/Gain 20 86,993,510 635,555,131
Shares of results of associates 4 (7,367,604) (12,584,012)

"Earning Before Interest ,Tax, Depreciation,

Amortigation (EBITOA)" P 20,764,125,353 26,689,896,932
Finance Cost 18 (417,044,749) (509,679,737)
Depreciation 2 (4,512,513,376) (4,200,105,820)
Amortisation of License Fee 1 (57,901,932) (64,737,000)
Impairments - net of reversals 19 (697,536,554) 10,730,977

Profit Before Tax 15,079,128,742 21,926,105,352
Income Tax Expenses
Current Income Tax 21.4 (5,959,365,152) (5,851,328,465)
Deferred Taxes- Normal 21.3 637,812,249 397,943,201

Deferred Taxes- Due to Change in Corporate
Income Tax Rate

Profit For the Period
Earnings Per Share (Basic) - Annualized
Earnings Per Share (Diluted) - Annualized
Net Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the company
Non-controlling interest
Profit For the Period

9,757,575,839
65.05
65.05

9,757,575,839

9,757,575,839

1,011,081,739

17,483,801,827
116.56
116.56

17,483,801,827

17,483,801,827

Significant accounting policies and explanatory notes are integral part of this financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Deepak Subedi
Chairman

Radhika Aryal
Director

Raj Bahadur Rawal
Director

Dilli Ram Adhikari
Managing Director

Dhanraj Gnyawali
Director

Pradeep Raj Upadhyay
Chief Financial Officer

CA. Prakash Jung Thapa
PJ Thapa & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Uttar Kumar Khatri
Director

Kumar Prasad Khatiwada
For Manager

CA. Achyut Raj Joshi
A.R. Joshi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Vishnu Prasad Kasaju
Director

Date: Poush 06, 2076
Place: Kathmandu
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2076 ( 16 July, 2019)

Figures in NPR

Particulars Notes

Current Year
FY 2075-76

Previous Year
FY 2074-75

Profit for the Period

Other comprehensive income/(expense)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange difference of translation of foreign operation

Cash Flow Hedges

Income Taxes relating to items that may be reclassified

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Gains on Property Revaluation 2
Investments in Equity Instruments (FV changes)
Remeasurements of defined retirement benefit plans

8.2.2
of employees
Shares of Other Comprehensive Income of
Associates
Income Taxes relating to items that will not be 21.3
reclassified '

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Equity holders of the company

Non-controlling interest

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period

9,757,575,839

3,865,254,766

922,780,397

(276,834,119)

14,268,776,883

14,268,776,883

14,268,776,883

17,483,801,827

(1,033,195,455)

309,958,637

16,760,565,009

16,760,565,009

16,760,565,009

Significant accounting policies and explanatory notes are integral part of this financial statements.

Deepak Subedi
Chairman

Radhika Aryal
Director

Raj Bahadur Rawal
Director

@ IS GOSN FOT fetaes

Dilli Ram Adhikari
Managing Director

Dhanraj Gnyawali
Director

Pradeep Raj Upadhyay
Chief Financial Officer

CA. Prakash Jung Thapa
PJ Thapa & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Uttar Kumar Khatri
Director

Kumar Prasad Khatiwada
For Manager

As per our report of even date

CA. Achyut Raj Joshi
A.R. Joshi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Vishnu Prasad Kasaju
Director

Date: Poush 06, 2076
Place: Kathmandu
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2076 ( 16 July, 2019)

Figures in NPR

Current Year
FY 2075-76

Previous Year
FY 2074-75

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit for the Year

Adjustments

Income Tax expense recognised in profit or loss
Deferred Tax expense recognised in profit or loss
Depreciation

Finance Income

Impairment Loss/(Reversal of Impairment Loss)
Finance Costs

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss

Amortization of License Fee

Equity loss on Associates

Unrealised (Gain)/Loss on Cash and Cash equivalents
Movements in Working Capital

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventory

(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments & Other Non-Financial Assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Employee Loan
(Increase)/Decrease in Accruals, Advance & Others Receivables
(Increase )/Decrease in Trade Receivables

(Increase )/Decrease in Deferred Taxes

Increase /(Decrease) in Non-Current Liability

Increase /(Decrease) in Provisions

Increase /(Decrease) in Current Liability

Increase /(Decrease) in Other Non-Financial Liabilities
NFRS Adjustments

Previous Year Adjustments

Income Taxes Paid

Total Adjustments

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities (A)

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

GSM License Fee Renewal

Internet License Fee Renewal

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment
Decrease/ (Increase) in Capital Work in Progress
Decrease/ (Increase) in Investment

Income from Investment & Bank Deposit

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Increase/ (Decrease) in Capital

Dividend Paid

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)

Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

9,757,575,839

5,959,365,152
(637,812,249)
4,512,513,376
(6,422,234,837)
697,536,554
383,271,042
922,780,397
57,901,932
7,367,604
38,318,745

146,946,328
134,887,091
(90,469,209)

(160,109,739)
331,708,365

7,223,152,773

1,038,995,889
3,123,642,547
108,726,205

(13,630,861,312)
(4,911,093,045)
(1,165,466,391)

8,592,109,448

(5,793,254,273)
(1,623,698,188)
(3,771,125,110)

6,422,234,837
(4,765,842,734)

(8,191,914,062)
(8,191,914,062)
(4,365,647,348)

(38,318,745)
23,410,997,112
19,007,031,019

17,483,801,827

5,851,328,465
(1,409,024,940)
4,200,105,820
(5,863,232,555)
(10,730,977)
474,248,252
(1,033,195,455)
64,737,000
12,584,012
(213,971,329)

34,037,790

13,565,199
(72,793,349)
129,640,390
105,996,817

42,666,375
172,901,212
771,637,862
417,286,577

(176,295,537)
(6,251,947,179)
(2,740,455,550)
14,743,346,277

(5,923,656,126)
1,179,211,976
(8,742,664,876)
5,863,232,555
(7,623,876,471)

(8,177,653,312)
(8,177,653,312)
(1,058,183,506)

213,971,329
24,255,209,289
23,410,997,112

Significant accounting policies and explanatory notes are integral part of this financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Deepak Subedi Dilli Ram Adhikari CA. Prakash Jung Thapa
Chairman Managing Director PJ Thapa & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA. Achyut Raj Joshi
A.R. Joshi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Radhika Aryal Dhanraj Gnyawali Uttar Kumar Khatri Vishnu Prasad Kasaju
Director Director Director Director

Date: Poush 06, 2076
Place: Kathmandu

Raj Bahadur Rawal Pradeep Raj Upadhyay Kumar Prasad Khatiwada
Director Chief Financial Officer For Manager
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Notes to Financial Statements

i) Reporting Entity

Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited with its brand name as ‘Nepal Telecom’ is Nepal's leading
telecommunication service provider, which provides voice, data and value added services, using state of the
art technologies. It is registered under the erstwhile Companies Act 2053, being incorporated on Magh 2060
(February 2004).

Nepal Telecom (also referred as “the company” hereinafter) is the continuation of the erstwhile Nepal
Telecommunication Corporation, a 100% Government of Nepal(GoN) undertaking, where all assets and all
liabilities of the corporation were transferred to the incorporated company with equity being transferred to the
Government in lieu of the government ownership.

The Government of Nepal and Citizen Investment Trust are the principal promoters of the company. The
Government of Nepal, who substantially owns the company, divested certain portion of its holdings in favour of
the company employees and general public. The current shareholding structure is as per note 9.

The shares of the company are listed and traded on the Nepal Stock Exchange Limited (NEPSE).

The company has its registered office at Bhadrakali Plaza, Kathmandu with its branches spread throughout the
country. It has made all efforts for nationwide reach, from urban to most remote locations in providing its valued
customer a quality telecommunication service that has assisted in the socio-economic development and digital
transformation of the urban as well as rural areas of the country.

The company has been providing wide range of telecommunication services. The company endeavours to
continue providing up to date telecommunication and related services in line with technological advances.

Annual financial statements of the company are released for general public and are also published on the
company's website www.ntc.net.np
i) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of property plant and equipment, fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities.

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis.

iii) Compliance with NFRS

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) issued by Accounting Standards Board Nepal (ASB) and pronounced by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

iv) Approval of Financial Statements
The accompanied financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors (BoD) of the company in its meeting held on Poush 6, 2076 (22 December, 2019).

v) Future Accounting and Reporting Developments

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

On 13 January 2016 the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) issued IFRS 16 to replace IAS 17
Leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise a right to use of asset and a liability for future payments arising
from a lease contract. Lessor’s accounting requirements remain aligned to the current approach under IAS 17.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ and IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’

In January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’, which require additional
disclosure about an entity’s financing activities, and IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’, which clarify when a deferred tax
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asset should be recognised for unrealised losses. These revised requirements, are not expected to have a
significant impact on the company’s financial statements.

vi) Presentation of Financial Statements

1. The statement of profit or loss has been prepared using classification ‘by nature’ method.

2. The cash flows from operation within the statement of cash flows have been derived using the ‘indirect’ method.

3. For presentation of Statement of Financial position, Assets and liabilities, wherever applicable, are
bifurcated in current and non-current based on their respective maturity, as well as the company’s normal
operating cycle. Such information has been disclosed in respective notes as applicable.

vii) Presentation Currency

The financial statements have been presented in the nearest Nepalese Rupees (NPR). Nepalese Rupees
(NPR) is the functional and presentation currency as well.

viii) Discounting

When the realisation of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the company considers
the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and external
factors have been considered for determining the appropriate discount rate to be applied to the cash flows of
the company. Appropriate discount rate is also used to determine the value in use for assessment of asset
impairment as well.

Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC), with risk adjustment, is basically used in determining discount
rates. For this purpose, Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM) is generally used to determine the cost of equity.
The fact that the company does not have any debt, weighted average cost of capital for the company would
in fact mean cost of equity only. Besides utilisation of CAPM model for expected rate of return would in turn
require beta to be determined. Since the company is the only listed company, in Nepalese telecom industry,
market beta may not give the appropriate picture of the movement of the market and the company’s rate of
return. This is further evidenced by the near stable price of the company’s shares as against the volatile
movement in the stock market.

Therefore, the risk adjusted dividend growth model has been used in determining the appropriate discount rate
to be applied for preparation of the financial statements. The rate thus derived for discounting the liabilities is
8%. Besides, the average rate of earning from the company’s investment, which is taken as 8%, is used for
discounting of assets and receivables.

iX) Accounting Policies, Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Accounting Policies

NFRS requires the company to adopt accounting policies that are most appropriate to the company’s
circumstances. In determining and applying accounting policies, management is required to make judgements
in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could
materially affect the company’s reported financial position, results or cash flows.

The accounting policies adopted by the company are consistently applied. Specific accounting policies
have been included in the specific section of the notes for each items of financial statements which requires
disclosures of accounting policies or changes in accounting policies. Effect and nature of the changes, if any,
have been disclosed at appropriate places.

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with NFRS requires the management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions in applying the accounting policies that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, including contingencies and commitments. Due to the inherent
uncertainty in making estimates, actual results reported in future periods may differ from those estimates. The
estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on on-going basis based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised, if the revision
affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of revision and the future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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The significant judgements made by the management in applying the company’s accounting policies and the
key sources of estimation uncertainty in these financial statements, which together are deemed critical to the
company'’s results and financial position, are given in the respective sections of the notes wherever they have
been applied.

X) Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the Company is satisfied that
the Company has the resources to continue the business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment,
the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions,
including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources. Furthermore, Board is not aware
of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company's ability to continue as a going
concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.

xi) Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The company does not have control over any other entity for consolidation of financial statements. Investments
in shares made by the company are financial investments and have been described under non-trading financial
investments in note 7.1 and investment in associates in note 4.

xii) Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset (or assets) and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or
assets), even if that asset is (or those assets are) not explicitly specified in an arrangement. A lease is classified
at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

Operating Lease

All leases other than finance leases are classified as operating leases. Leases that do not transfer substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the Company are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The company has recognised the rentals payable under operating leases to be accounted on accrual
basis based on agreement and are included in Rent and Leasehold Cost of Land and Buildings under

‘Administrative expenses’.

xiii) Reporting Dates

Particulars Nepalese Calendar Date / Period Gregorian Calendar Date / Period
Comparative SFP* Date 32 Ashadh 2075 16 July 2018

Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2074 - 32 Ashadh 2075 16 July 2017 - 16 July 2018

NFRS SFP* Date 31 Ashadh 2076 16 July 2019

NFRS reporting period 1 Shrawan 2075 - 31 Ashadh 2076 17 July 2018 - 16 July 2019

* SFP = Statement of Financial Position

xiv) Materiality

The company, for the preparation of financial statements determines materiality based on the nature or
magnitude, or both. Materiality is a pervasive constraint in financial reporting because it is pertinent to all of
the qualitative characteristics.
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Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes

1. Intangible Assets

Accounting Policies

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be reliably
measured.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives and the amortisation methods of the assets are reviewed
at least annually. Changes in the estimated useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefit embodied in the assets are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates in accordance with NAS 8. Amortisation
is charged to Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis over the useful life of intangible assets.

Intangible assets h aving infinite useful life are assessed for impairment at each reporting date.

Explanatory Notes

Softwares

Softwares are considered to be integral to an item of hardware equipment and are classified as property, plant
and equipment and depreciated over the useful life of the respective hardware.

Licence Fees

The net carrying amount of intangible assets pertains to the unamortised portion of various license fees
paid to Nepal Telecommunications Authority (NTA). The license fees are paid in accordance with regulatory
requirement, in advance with applicable portion being charged to the relevant reporting period. The uncharged
portion is carried in the financial statements as intangible assets. The amortisation is done, on the time
apportion basis, over the validity period of the license as specified by NTA as below:

Product/Service PSTN GSM Internet Total
Valid from 2072.10.13 2071.01.29 2072.01.15
Valid to 2077.10.12 2076.01.28 2077.01.14
Life (in years) 5 5 5

NPR
Total Fee 134,415,000 189,000,000 270,000 323,685,000
Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2075 68,201,803 30,964,932 96,164 99,262,899
Payment during FY 2075-76 - - - -
Amortisation for FY 2075-76 (26,883,000) (30,964,932) (54,000) (57,901,932)
Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2076 41,318,803 - 42,164 41,360,967

Further Information — GSM License First Renewal Fee

The GSM license renewal fee of NPR 20 billion has been recognised as expense for the 5 years period from
the due date. However, the Government of Nepal's cabinet decision dated 2069/06/14 rescheduled the
payment of NPR 20 billion with the due amount to be paid in 8 annual instalments. The unpaid liability has
been segregated and presented as current and non-current liabilities.

GSM License Second Renewal Fee

Despite the dispute with the regulatory authority on payment of GSM License second renewal fee which
had become due on 2071/01/29, the company was obligated to pay NPR 20 billion only on 2076/02/10
vide GON's cabinet decision . However Government of Nepal's decision dated 2076/02/10 rescheduled the
payment of NPR 20 billion (less already paid amount of NPR 189,000,000.) with the due amount to be paid
in 5 annual instalments starting from FY 2075/76.

GSM License Third Renewal Fee

The third renewal of GSM license that fell due on 2076/01/28 is still uncertain and yet to be confirmed. As per
the Government of Nepal's decision dated 2076/02/10, the company renewed its license by paying NPR
189 million during the financial year. A provision has been made for ~ NPR 723,287,671 for 66 days of the
financial year based on past obligation imposed by GON’s decision.
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Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Accounting Policies

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at their cost and are inclusive
of all expenses necessary to bring the assets to working condition for its intended use less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if applicable. Property, plant and
equipment are recognised as an asset, if and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company; and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The depreciation period is based on the expected useful life of an asset. Iltems of property plant and
equipment are depreciated on pro rata basis in the year of acquisition. The residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation methods of assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end and, if expectations differ
from previous estimates, they are accounted for as a change in accounting estimates in accordance with
NAS 8.

In addition to the purchase price and cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
conditions necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management if an item
of property, plant and equipment consists of several components with different estimated useful lives, those
components that are significant, are depreciated over their individual useful lives. Subsequent costs that do
not qualify t he recognition criteria under NAS 16 are expensed as and when incurred.

NAS 16 and IFRIC 1 require cost of PPE to include the estimated cost for dismantling and removal of the
assets, and restoring the site on which they are located. Management perceives that such costs are difficult to
estimate and considering the past practice the amount of such costs are not material to affect the economic
decision of the user as a result of such non-inclusion. Therefore, asset retirement obligation (ARO) has not
been recognised.

Assets that have been decommissioned or has been identified as damaged beyond economic repair or
rendered useless due to obsolescence are derecognised whenever identified. On disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment or when no economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, the
carrying amount of an item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of that
item and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The company has significant investment in network, equipment and infrastructure. The base stations and
technology to operate network form majority of the company’s tangible assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to expense off the cost of assets, other than land, using straight line method
over their estimated useful lives. The depreciation is charged on revalued amount of building and physical
structure over the remaining useful life. The additional depreciation if any on revalued amount of building
and physical structure is transferred from revaluation reserve to other comprehensive income. The residual
values, useful life and depreciation methods are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If expectations
differ from the previous estimates the changes are accounted for as changes in estimates in accordance with
NAS 8.
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Useful Life
Useful lives of material asset categories and their depreciation rate on the Straight-Line Method are disclosed

below:

Classification Sub-Classification Useful life

Building RCC Frame Structure 50
Load bearing structure (brick/stone) -Official Purpose 25
Load bearing structure (brick/stone) -Equipment Purpose 15
Metal Structure 15
Shelter 15
Compound Wall 15

Plant & Machinery Underground Network 15
Overhead Network 10
Earth Station 7
Telephone set
ADSL and Internet System 5
Optical fiber 10
Billing System (Billing, WIN, AAA Server, VOMS etc.) 7
RAN Equipment (BSC, BTS, BTS VAN, Node B, RRU, BBU etc.) 7
Core Equipment (MSC, HLR, OMC, VLR, IN, RSN, MGW, SMSC, USSD, PS,
CS, WGW, IP Clock etc.)
Transmission Equipment (Satellite, Microwave etc.) 7
Power — Battery 4
Power — Others 6
Tools (Subscribers Equipment, Planning / Testing / Loose tools etc.) 5
Others 5

Other Items Heating, Lighting, Air-conditioning 5
Furniture and Fixtures 5
Office Equipment 5
Vehicle- Motorcycle/car/jeep/truck 10
Vehicle- Tricycle, cycle and others 5

If an item of property, plant and equipment consists of several components with different useful lives, those
components that are significant are depreciated over their individual useful life. Any component asset’s useful
life is not considered more than its major assets.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from the use of that asset. The gain or loss arising from the disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net disposal proceed, if any and the carrying amount.

Impairment

Property Plant and Equipment are subject to impairment assessment if there is any indication that the carrying
value may exceed the recoverable value of the assets. Such impairment assessment of assets is done on the
basis of cash generating unit or if not possible on individual asset basis.

Revaluation

Freehold land properties ,building and physical structure held by the company is recognised and reported
at fair value conducting periodic revaluation. If an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a
revaluation, the increase shall be recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of revaluation surplus. However, the increase shall be recognised in profit or loss to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

If an asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised in
profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any
credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other
comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus.



The accumulated depreciation on revalued building and physical structure is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the assets and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the assets.

Explanatory Notes

Land

Land properties with ownership documents (i.e. in occupation and with valid documentation) have been
recognised meeting the asset recognition criteria, also considering the principle of substance over form. Fair
Value of each of these properties has been assessed by taking into account market consideration and the
government rate. All land properties have been revalued to the approximation of fair value as on 31 Ashadh,
2076 by independent valuator. The fair value of land was determined using Level Il information as required by
NFRS 13, in absence of active real estate market but considering the recent transaction value of the similar
land in the similar locality.

Considering the company’s intention to hold the land for a foreseeable future, fair market value was considered
taking into account weightage of 60% for prevalent market prices and 40% price determined for government’s
land revenue charges.

In FY 2073-74, 29 units of lands were transferred in the ownership of the company. The revalued amount of
those lands amounting to NPR 2,166,382,142 is recognized in the books after revaluation to the approximation
of fair value.

Substance over form

The company is in occupation and using land properties even in absence of ownership document in the
company’s name. Considering the perpetuity of the usage and no apparent restriction on economic benefit
of such land being used by the company, those properties have been recognised as assets. The value and
details of such land is as follows;

Details of Land being used by the company but not in its ownership

No of Area

SN Land or Building location (Square Meter)

Amount (NPR)

1 Land 238 482,549.61
a. Land under Forest for tower structure 97 132,295.36 Not Available

b. Land under previous Nepal D oorsanchar Sansthan - -

c. Land under GoN ownership 103 219,018.38
d. Land registered in the name of other offices of GoN 19 65,240.87
e. Land under process of ownership transfer (Government 12 36,562.21

decision for ownership transfer already made)

2 Building Not Available 177,097,149.76

Buildings and Physical Structure

All physical structures have been classified on the basis of their construction type (such as RCC pillar structure,
Load bearing, Stone masonry, Shed and other structures etc.). Historical cost of the physical structures
reduced by accumulated depreciation computed on the basis of management’s estimation of useful life, for
each type, have been recognised as asset on the date of the opening NFRS SFP.

The company has adopted revaluation model to present the value of its building and physical structure. The
accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

The amount of the adjustment arising on the statement or elimination of accumulated depreciation forms part
of the increase or decrease in carrying amount that is accounted for in accordance with accounting policies
of the company.

The company has conducted revaluation of freehold land, buildings and physical structures as on Ashadh 31
,2076 (July 16, 2019) by the independent valuator.

Some of the buildings and physical structures have been constructed in the land property where the company
does not have the document of title. Substance over form has been taken as the basis for recognition of such
buildings.
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Further, there is a regulatory requirement that all physical structures should be supported by the approved
design and construction completion certificate from concerned authorities. There are building that do not
have either approved design or construction completion certificate. These entail risk from regulatory authority
including fines and possible demolitions.

Revaluation Reserve
The effect of revaluation of land, building and physical structures conducted as on 31 Ashadh, 2076 are as

below:
NPR
Land Building Total
Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2075 18,088,470,531 - 18,088,470,531
Upward revaluation during the period 7,272,022,521 757,295,508 8,029,318,029
Downward revaluation during the period (4,164,063,263) - (4,164,063,263)
Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2076 21,196,429,789 757,295,508 21,953,725,297

Further, the decrease in carrying amount of building and physical structures of NPR 443,743,742 has been
charged to profit or loss as an impairment. The revaluation reserve as above is not available for distribution
to the shareholders.

Plant and Equipment

Historical cost of Plant and Equipment reduced by the accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss computed on the basis of the management’s estimation of useful life, for each class of assets, have
been recognised. Plant and equipment, that are either not in existence or in operation have been specifically
identified and derecognised as required under NFRS. The Plant and Equipment of WiMAX project has been
impaired as per NAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ (refer Note 19).

Furniture, Fixtures and Other Office Equipment

Historical cost of Furniture Fixtures and Other office equipment reduced by the accumulated depreciation
computed on the basis of the management’s estimation of useful life, for each class of assets, have been
recognised as asset.

Vehicles
Historical cost of the vehicles reduced by the accumulated depreciation computed on the basis of the
management’s estimation of useful life, for each type, have been recognised.
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Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)

Accounting Policies
Assets in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Depreciation on
these assets commence when these assets are ready for their intended use.

The expenditure incurred in acquisition and installation of new systems and equipment till the date of
commissioning or civil works under construction till the date of completion is recognised as Capital work in
progress. The value of capital work in progress includes stock of equipment lying in store or in transit for the
purpose of getting used in such installation or construction. The value also includes balances with contractors
and suppliers of the systems and equipment for the value to be received. Equipment are capitalised upon
commissioning and civil works are capitalised upon handing over after being capable of use.

Explanatory Notes

NPR
Capital Work in Progress Capital Works Capital Advance to Total
Inventory Suppliers
under and
installation Contractors
CWIP Balance as Ashadh end 2075 378,269,980  4,544,961,553 615,622,707  5,538,854,240
Net Addition / (Net Transfer) for 2075-76 329,528,491 (321,164,562) 1,615,334,259 1,623,698,188
CWIP Balance as Ashadh end 2076 707,798,471 4,223,796,991 2,230,956,966  7,162,552,428
Accumulated Impairment as Ashadh end 2075 580,692,257 5,849,617 586,541,874
Impairment for 2075-76
Accumulated Impairment as Ashadh end 2076 580,692,257 5,849,617 586,541,874
Net Balance as at Ashadh end, 2076 707,798,471  3,643,104,734  2,225,107,349 6,576,,010,554
Net Balance as at Ashadh end, 2075 378,269,980  3,964,269,296 609,773,090 4,952,312,366

4. |Investments in Associates

Accounting Policies

An associate is an entity over which the company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but do not have control or joint control over those policies.

At the date of acquisition, any excess of the cost of acquisition over the company’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate is recognised as goodwill. The
goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment.

The results, assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the statement of
financial position at cost as adjusted for post- acquisition changes in the company’s share of the net assets
of the associate, less any impairment in the value of the investment. The company’s share of post-tax profits
or losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Losses of an associate in excess of the company’s
interest in that associate are recognised only to the extent that the company has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Explanatory Notes

NPR
| in A iates 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
nvestment in Associate Current Year Previous Year
Investment in Trishuli Jal Vidhyut Company Ltd.
At Cost 741,000,000 440,000,000
Equity adjustments (45,296,151) (37,928,547)
Total 695,703,849 402,071,453
Associate’s share of Income/(Expense) (7,367,604) (12,584,012)
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The Company has pledged its Equity Investment of Trishuli Jal Vidhyut Company Ltd. with Nabil Bank Ltd
(Lead Bank of Trishuli 3B Hydro Project financing) on Shrawan 07, 2076 for consortium project financing.

Trishuli 3B Hydro Project Background

Trishuli Jal Vidhyut Company Ltd. (TJVCL) currently working on developing Upper Trishuli 3B Hydroelectric
Project (UT3B HEP). It is a run-of-river type hydroelectric project located at Rasuwa and Nuwakot district
of Nepal. The project is cascade of Upper Trishuli 3A Hydroelectric Project (60 MW) and has an installed
capacity of 37 MW. The gross head of the project is 90 m, length of headrace tunnel is 3805.48 m and the
average annual energy generation is estimated to be 292.58 GWh.

The power produced by the Project will be evacuated to the under construction Trishuli 3B Hub Sub-station
through 3 km long 132kV transmission line. As per the project schedule, the project will be completed on 13
March, 2021.

Total Project Cost including Interest During Construction is NPR 822 Crore and its financing structure is 30%
Equity and 70% Debt.

Current Status Trishuli 3B Hydroelectric Project

Following is the summary of the major works done so far by TJIVCL:

o Upper Trishuli 3B Hydroelectric Project has been selected by Government of Nepal as the first Project
under the “Janata ko Jalvidhyut” programme. Accordingly, Trishuli Jal Vidhyut Company Limited issued
Initial Public Offering (IPO) of its shares to the general public in March 2019.

e Loan agreement with the consortium of Nepalese Banks led by Nabil Bank Ltd. and co-led by Jalvidhyut
Lagani Tatha Bikas Company Ltd. as part of financial closure for the debt portion required for the Project
was signed on 20 August, 2018.

e Excavation of about 1410 m (37%) of Headrace Tunnel has been completed.

e Excavation of 119 m of Adit 2 has been completed.

e Excavation for powerhouse slope and foundation is going on.

e Excavation of Surge Tank Slope is going on.

Inventory

Accounting Policies
Inventories are carried at the lower of net realisable value or cost.

Cost comprises of all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is measured using First In First Out (FIFO) method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion
and the necessary estimated expenses.

Inventories are presented net of allowance for obsolete items. The allowances for obsolescence is estimated
to approximate the net realisable value of such items. Allowance adjustments are made for those inventories
identified by the management as obsolete, nhon-moving and slow-moving on the basis of the last usage of the
inventory items lapsing more than five years old, 2-5 years and 1-2 years respectively.

Inventory Usage Allowance
Regular Within 1 year -
Slow Moving 1to 2 years 25%
Non-Moving 2to 5 years 50%
Obsolete More than 5 years 100%
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Explanatory Notes
Inventories primarily consist of cash cards, telephone sets (mobile or otherwise), drop wires, accessories and
spares that are not eligible for capitalisation.

NPR
inventory Currenivear  Provious Year
Gross Inventory
Telephone sets, Drop Wire & Accessories 85,230,878 90,782,481
Cash Cards 121,939,024 145,957,699
Spares and other Inventories 415,296,838 532,672,888

622,466,740 769,413,068
Allowance Adjustments
Telephone sets, Drop Wire & Accessories 27,866,538 27,684,421
Cash Cards 2,838,470 960,540
Spares and other Inventories 313,712,050 315,772,096
344,417,057 344,417,057
Inventory net of allowances
Telephone sets, Drop Wire & Accessories 57,364,340 63,098,060
Cash Cards 119,100,555 144,997,159
Spares and other Inventories 101,584,788 216,900,792
Total 278,049,683 424,996,011
6. Prepayments, Other Non-Financial Assets and Other Non-Financial Liabilities
6.1 Prepayments and Other Non-Financial Assets

Accounting Policies

Instances where the payments have been made and where the expense pertain to the future period(s) are
recognised as prepayments. These amounts are charged to statement of profit or loss in the period to which
they relate with. Other Non-Financial Assets include Advances for spare parts and to suppliers, employees,
and other working advances on which the company receives the goods and services in the future during the
normal course of business.

Explanatory Notes

NPR
Prepayments, Other Non-Financial Assets CS}rggt%(%Za? Pre?/?(.)?ls;%(%g?
Prepaid expenses 57,629,079 57,990,617
Other Non-Financial Assets 147,189,921 283,071,468
Total 204,819,000 341,062,085

6.2 Other Non-Financial Liabilities

Accounting Policies

Non-Financial Liabilities include the statutory liabilities which arise as a result of statutory obligation during
the normal course of business of the company. It also includes the liabilities on the part of the company to the
customers for the promised services.

Explanatory Notes

NPR

. . L 31.03.2076 32.03.2075

Other Non-Financial Liabilities QTR ReT Previous Year
VAT Payable 96,963,033 88,003,671
Other Fee Collection Payable 415,599,596 318,055,010
Royalty and Contribution to RTDF Payable 2,210,391,034 2,339,617,551

Advance from Subscribers/Unearned
Cash Card Sales

Total

1,064,339,531
3,787,293,194

932,890,757
3,678,566,989
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7.1

Financial Instruments

Accounting Policies
The company has elected to apply NFRS 9 Financial Instruments as the new accounting policies provide
more reliable and relevant information for users to assess the amounts, timing and uncertainty of future
cash flows.

Financial Assets

(i) Classification
The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value

1. through other comprehensive income, or
2. through profit or loss

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which
the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the company has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes

(if) Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are charged
in profit or loss.

Investments and Other Financial Assets

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
company classifies its debt instruments:

a. Amortised Cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

b. Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

c. FairValue Through Profit or Loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit or loss within other gains/(losses) in the period
in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in the finance income.
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Equity instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the company’s management
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/
(losses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(iii) Impairment of Financial Assets

The company assesses on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 19 details how the company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by NFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

The company has applied NFRS 9 retrospectively, and has elected to restate comparative information. As a
result, the comparative information provided have been accounted for in accordance with the new policies.

The company has four types of financial assets subject to NFRS 9’s new expected credit loss model. The
company was required to revise its impairment methodology under NFRS 9 for each of these classes of
assets.

(i) Employee Loans
For loans and receivables already in place at Ashadh end 2076, the company has determined them
reliably assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each loan or receivable that would
result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by NFR S 9, the credit provision will be determined based on
whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, until the loan is derecognised.

(if) Accruals Advance and Other Receivables
For Accruals, Advances and Other Receivables, the company applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by NFRS 9, which requires the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision.

(iif) Trade Receivables
For trade receivables, the company applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit
losses prescribed by NFRS 9, which requires the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables.

(iv) Term Deposits & Investments in Bonds
These are debt investments at amortised cost and are considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment
provision is determined as 12 months expected credit losses.

Explanatory Notes:

NPR
I(:Ilr\'n(aznocggl_%s)sets FVEPL DethVtOC| ity At Amort(i:s(,)es(i Total
Investments in Corporate Shares 765,400,000 765,400,000
Employee Loan 2,276,402,197 2,276,402,197
Aceruals, Advance & Others 341,385,056 341,385,056
Trade Receivable 2,165,132,989 2,165,132,989
Term Deposits and Investments 53,579,192,550 53,579,192,550
Cash & Cash Equivalents 19,007,031,019 19,007,031,019
Total 19,007,031,019 - 765,400,000 58,362,112,792 78,134,543,811



NPR

Financial Assets Amortised

(FY 2074-75) FVtPL FVtOCI cost Total
Debt Equity

Investments in Corporate Shares 765,400,000 765,400,000

Employee Loan

Accruals, Advance & Others
Receivable

Trade Receivable

Term Deposits & Investments

2,185,932,988
232,163,917

2,711,487,540
50,109,067,440

2,185,932,988
232,163,917

2,711,487,540
50,109,067,440

Cash & Cash Equivalents 23,410,997,112

23,410,997,112 -

23,410,997,112

765,400,000 55,238,651,885 79,415,048,997

7.1.1 Investments in Corporate Shares

Accounting Policies

The investments in corporate shares are accounted for at fair value in accordance with NFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. These investments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as the
company does not intend to hold these instruments for trading purpose.

Explanatory Notes

NPR

. 31.03.2076 32.03.2075

Investments in Corporate Shares Current Year Previous Year
Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Ltd. 635,400,000 635,400,000
Vidhyut Utpadan Company Ltd. 130,000,000 130,000,000
765,400,000 765,400,000

The company has made these investments under long term investment strategy. The company has promoter
shareholding in those companies. These companies are yet to be in full operation to generate revenue. Upper
Tamakoshi Hydropower Ltd. is listed in the stock exchange, However the promoter share have not been
transacted during the period.

So, the company believes, considering other similar investments in the market, that the long-term return from
the investments and the future value will more than sufficiently cover the cost of the investments. The cost
value currently represents the fair value of the investments.

7.1.2 Employee Loans

Accounting Policies
Employee loans are accounted for at amortised costs using effective interest rate.

Explanatory Notes

Employee loans are benefits provided by the company to its employees. Company’s business model is to
hold on to these assets until maturity solely for the purpose of collecting principal and interest only. The
company collects interest at the time of disbursal and principal is collected over the period in accordance with
the repayment schedule. The intrinsic effective interest is taken to profit or loss and the principal outstanding
is reported at the amortised cost. These loans have the recoverable period from 1 to 19 years. The discount
rate that has been considered for computing amortised cost is the notional interest rate used for determining
the taxable benefit of employees. The rate also approximates the company’s return from the term deposits.

NPR
31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Employee Loan Current Year Previous Year

Gross Disbursement and Outstanding
Amortised cost adjustment

Total Employee Loan at amortised cost

Employee Loan - Current Portion
Employee Loan - Non-Current Portion

Total Employee Loan at amortised cost

4,167,274,718
(1,890,872,521)
2,276,402,197

84,270,482
2,192,131,715
2,276,402,197

4,238,724,721
(2,052,791,733)
2,185,932,988

178,373,671
2,007,559,317
2,185,932,988
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These assets are considered to have nominal risk of recovery as the employee’s current and retirement
benefits adequately secure the receivables.

7.1.3 Accruals, Advances and Other Receivables

Accounting Policies
Accruals, Advances and Other Receivables are classified as financial assets carried at amortised cost using
effective interest rate.

Explanatory Notes

These are non-interest bearing short term receivables and are expected to be recovered within next 12
months with insignificant risk. Therefore, the carrying value, which is at cost, is considered to represent the
amortised cost.

Interest Accrued represent the amount pertaining to the period but with the payment timing beyond the
reporting dates. The risk of non-recovery is considered to be nominal.

Advances and Claims Against Others pertain to advances and claims to be received .

NPR

Accruals, Advances and Other Receivables Cgélrgr?ti(%;? Pre?/?c.)%as%((():a?
Interest Accrued 222,386,933 35,701,949
Advance To and Claims Against Others 29,790,831 191,271,860
Advance To and Claims Against Employees 89,207,292 5,190,108
341,385,056 232,163,917

7.1.4 Trade Receivables

Accounting Policies

Trade receivables comprise of amounts owed to the company by the customers. A fifteen days credit period
is allowable to all the receivables from PSTN and VSAT services provided by the company. Trade receivables
do not carry any interest and are measured at the carrying amount at which the items are initially recognised
less any impairment losses, i.e. stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances. Such
allowances are affected by way of write-downs based on the estimated irrecoverable amount. The company
estimates the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on these instruments in the form of impairments.

Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectible. Write-offs of
trade receivables are recognised in some cases using the allowance accounts.

Explanatory Notes

The company’s trade receivables are stated after allowances for bad and doubtful debts based on company’s
assessment of credit worthiness and overdue for more than 12 months. In addition to the non-recoverable
risk of trade receivables, which the company believes is adequately covered by the allowances made, these
assets are subject to diminishing value due to time value of money and inflationary devaluation as no interest
is charged on these accounts.

NPR
- 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Trade Receivables Current Year Previous Year

Gross Trade Receivable
General Public
Government offices
International Inter- connection

Domestic Inter- connection

Expected Credit Loss
General Public (Stage 2)
Government offices (Stage 2)
International Inter- connection (Stage 1)

Domestic Inter- connection (Stage 2)
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2,577,676,366
42,057,829
1,240,611,847
253,170,345
4,113,516,386

1,573,274,012
10,514,457
111,424,584
253,170,344
1,948,383,397

2,439,672,679
47,045,029
1,602,402,608
356,104,435
4,445,224,751

1,463,803,607
11,761,257
80,120,130
178,052,217
1,733,737,211



Trade Receivables net of Impairment

General Public 1,004,402,354 975,869,072
Government Offices 31,543,372 35,283,772
International Interconnection 1,129,187,263 1,522,282,478
Domestic Interconnection 1 178,052,218

2,165,132,989

2,711,487,540

International Interconnection Receivables

The company believes that the International interconnection receivables do not have any credit risk for
possible losses. Therefore Stage 1 impairment of expected loss within the next 12 months is considered,
which is considered to be nominal. However, it is international practice of allowing 5% variation on the
settlement of international interconnection between the service providers and the company. The company
has estimated write-downs on these accounts to be maximum 5% and the same rate has been applied for
impairment. Further, additional expected credit loss is provided to individual trade receivable on prudent
basis as estimated by the management.

Other Trade Receivables

Receivables from the general public, government offices and domestic interconnections are overdue
accounts and the company has assessed credit risk on the recovery of these accounts over the life time of
the outstanding credit. The company has a dedicated team to follow up for the collection of these overdue
amounts, some of which are backed by guarantees. The risk of non-recovery for expected loss is considered
to be 60% on receivable from General Public, 25% on receivables from Government Offices and 50% on
Domestic Inter-connection receivables and impairment has been charged accordingly. The company believes
that the impairment covers adequately for expected credit loss and the loss due to the time value of money.
Further, additional expected credit loss is provided to individual trade receivable on prudent basis as estimated
by the management.

7.1.5 Term Deposits and Investments in Bonds

Accounting Policies

The company recognises terms deposits and investments initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised
cost using effective interest rate. The company has capacity and intention to hold on these investments until
maturity. It is company’s business model to hold on these investments solely for the purpose of receiving
principal and interest.

Explanatory Notes

The company only invests in term deposits and bonds of the government and class ‘A’ commercial banks in
Nepal. The Banks are regulated and are under strict monitoring of the central bank of Nepal, therefore, the
risk of non-recovery on these instruments are considered nominal. Under the company’s business model, the
company intend to receive only the contractual cash flows from these financial assets. Further, in absence of
any other incremental costs, the interest rate inherent in these instruments are the effective interest rate and
adjust for the credit risk and time value of money.

NPR
Term Deposits and Investments in Bonds ngrggt%%?a? Pre%?é%i%(%?r
Government and Corporate Bonds
Siddhartha Bank Debentures 500,000,000 100,000,000
10% NIC ASIA Bank Debenture 100,000,000
10.25% Global IME Bank Debenture 107,689,000
10% NMB Bank Debenture 20,000,000

Investments
Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Ltd.
Term Deposits
In Foreign Currency (US$)

In Nepalese Currency

9,429,543,550

6,670,960,000
36,751,000,000
53,579,192,550

8,738,327,440

6,669,740,000
34,601,000,000
50,109,067,440
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7.2

Current 43,521,960,000
Non-Current 10,057,232,550

Total 53,579,192,550

41,270,740,000
8,838,327,440
50,109,067,440

Interest accrued at the rate of 11% amounting to NPR 691,216,110 (Net of TDS) on Loan Investment
provided to M/s Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Limited has been capitalised as per the loan agreement. Total
outstanding, including opening balance and capitalised interest as at the year-end, is NPR 9,429,543,550.
Further, the company has committed to provide NPR 2.4 hillion to M/s Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Limited
as an additional loan investment.

Term Deposits held by the company amount to NPR 3,607,581,236 has been kept as lien as security by the
bank letter of credits and guarantees issued.

7.1.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounting Policies
Cash and cash equivalents are reported at their carrying value. The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents approximate their fair value.

Explanatory Notes

NPR
. 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Cash and Cash Equivalents Current Year Previous Year

Bank Balances

Interest Bearing

Non-Interest Bearing

Cash Balance

Effect of Exchange rate changes

19,015,152,985
30,181,234
15,545
19,045,349,764
(38,318,745)
19,007,031,019

22,995,689,901
199,909,574
1,426,308
23,197,025,783
213,971,329
23,410,997,112

Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity of less than three months. These enable the company
to meet its short-term liquidity requirements. The majority of the company’s cash and cash equivalents
comprise of interest bearing call deposits with commercial banks and other highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of change in value. These
also include cash-in-hand and cheques. Margins kept for trade finance transactions are also shown under
cash and cash equivalents.

Foreign currency balances with banks falling under the cash and cash equivalents classification, are converted
into reporting currency using the closing rates.

Risk of holding cash and bank balance is the time value of money and the inflationary devaluation which is
not fully off-set by interest earned by those bank deposits.

Financial Liabilities

(i) Classification
Financial liabilities are categorised under two categories

e Those carried at amortised cost through profit or loss
e Those carried at amortised cost using effective interest rate

(i) Measurement
On initial recognition all financial liabilities are recognised at their fair value. The subsequent measurement
depends on the classification of the financial liabilities.
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Explanatory Notes
Financial liabilities of the company are reported at amortised cost using effective interest rate.

NPR
Financial Liabilities(FY 2075-76) FVtPL Amortised cost Total
Subscriber Deposits 1,929,304,322 1,929,304,322
GSM License Fee Renewal 15,438,123,781 15,438,123,781

Provisions

Current Liabilities

3,321,597,782
8,165,597,098
28,854,622,983

3,321,597,782
8,165,597,098
28,854,622,983

NPR

Financial Liabilities(FY 2074-75)

FVtPL

Amortised cost

Total

Subscriber Deposits

GSM License Renewal Fee

Provisions

Current Liabilities

1,939,289,820
4,458,161,866
2,282,601,893
8,562,797,569
17,242,851,148

1,939,289,820
4,458,161,866
2,282,601,893
8,562,797,569
17,242,851,148

7.2.1 Subscriber Deposits

Explanatory Notes

Subscribers’ deposits are deposits taken from customers for the services they have subscribed in accordance
with the company’s service policies. It consists of credit limit and deposit taken from customers for the services
they have subscribed. The company pays nominal interest of 3% on these deposits. In absence of the maturity
period of these credit limit and deposits, these are considered to have the maturity of 5 years and effective
interest rate has been applied, considering the 8% discount rate which is the average rate that company
earns from the term deposits. The effective interest is taken to statement of profit or loss.

NPR
Subscriber Deposits 31.03.2076 32.03.2075

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Amount

Discount

2,405,111,180
(475,806,858)
1,929,304,322

2,441,714,771
(502,424,951)
1,939,289,820

Only nominal value of subscriber deposit is reversed, normally as the result of discontinuance by the
subscribers and it is not possible to estimate the probable future payments. Therefore, the entire subscriber
deposit is classified as non-current.

7.2.2 GSM License Fee Renewal Liability

Explanatory Notes

GSM License Fee First Renewal Liability

The company was obligated to pay NPR 20 billion as the first renewal fee for its GSM License. However,the
Government of Nepal vide decision dated 2069/06/14 rescheduled the payment of the first renewal fee to be
paid over the next eight years by annual instalments of NPR 2,500,000,000. The liability is accounted for at
amortised cost using effective interest rate. The company has considered 8% as the discount rate for the
future payments and computation of amortised cost. The rate is the company’s average return from the term
deposits. The effective interest is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

GSM License Second Renewal Liability

The company was obligated to pay NPR 20 billion (less already paid amount of NPR 189,000,000) as
the second renewal for its GSM License. However,the Government of Nepal rescheduled the payment of
the remaining second renewal fee to be paid over the next five years by equal annual instalments of NPR
3,962,200,000. The liability is accounted for at amortised cost using effective interest rate. The company has
considered 8% as the discount rate for the future payments and computation of amortised cost. The rate is
the company’s average return from the term deposits. The effective interest is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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GSM License Fee Renewal Liability

Gross Amount

Discount

Current Portion
Non-Current Portion

31.03.2076
Current Year

18,348,800,000
(2,910,676,219)
15,438,123,781

6,462,200,000
8,975,923,781
15,438,123,781

NPR

32.03.2075
Previous Year

5,000,000,000
(541,838,134)
4,458,161,866

2,500,000,000
1,958,161,866
4,458,161,866

7.2.3 Provisions

Explanatory Notes

Provisions are obligations with uncertain timing and amount. The company has legal and constructive obligation
for disbursements. The provisions have been computed based on the legal provisions and company’s bylaws.
The timing and actual payment is subject to further approvals. The company estimates that these obligations
will be settled within the next 12 months, therefore no discounting has been applied. The carrying amount

represents the amortised cost.

The amount of provision recognised is the management’s best estimate of expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date. Management reviews provisions at each balance sheet date and is
adjusted to reflect the best current estimate. If it is no longer probable that a transfer of economic benefits will

be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

NPR
.. 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Provisions Current Year Previous Year

Provision for Telecom Allowance
Provision for Staff Bonus
Provision for GSM License Fee

1,139,771,386
1,458,538,725

723,287,671
3,321,597,782

1,363,729,820
918,872,073

2,282,601,893

GSM License Third Renewal Fee

The third renewal of GSM license that fell due on 2076/01/28 is still uncertain and yet to be confirmed. As per
the Government of Nepal's decision dated 2076/02/10, the company renewed its license by paying NPR
189 million during the financial year. A provision has been made for
financial year based on past obligation imposed by GON’s decision.

7.2.4 Other Current Liabilities

Explanatory Notes

NPR 723,287,671 for 66 days of the

NPR
2o IR
Sundry Creditors - Suppliers 6,959,684,152 7,511,969,598
Sundry Creditors -Inter -Administration 343,966,756 391,283,054
Advances Work/Income related 663,790,688 468,794,546
Others Liabilities 198,155,502 190,750,371

8,165,597,098

8,562,797,569

7.3 Financial Guarantee Contract

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value. The fair value of a financial guarantee contract is the present
value of the difference between the net contractual cash flows required under a debt instrument, and the net
contractual cash flows that would have been required without the guarantee. The present value is calculated

using a risk free rate of interest.
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7.4

At the end of each subsequent reporting period financial guarantees are measured at the higher of:
The amount of the loss allowance; and
The amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization, where appropriate.

The amount of the loss allowance at each subsequent reporting period initially equals to 12-month expected
credit losses. However, where there has been a significant increase in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract, the calculation is for lifetime expected credit losses.

Expected credit losses for a financial guarantee contract are the cash shortfall adjusted by the risks that are
specific to the cash flows.

Cash shortfalls are the difference between:
The expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs; and
Any amount that an entity expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party

Explanatory Notes

The Company has given financial guarantee and pledged its equity share investment of its associate M/s
Trishuli Jalavidhyut Company Limited to Nabil Bank Ltd for Trishuli 3B Hydro Project financing as on 7
Shrawan, 2076.

Financial Risk Management

The company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk
(Foreign currency risk, interest risk) which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments.
Risk management focuses on the unpredictable financial loss and seeks to minimize potential adverse effect
on company's performance.

The company’s Board and senior management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the company’s risk management. The company’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits.

Risk management policies/practices and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the company’s activities. The risk management is done by the company's management that
provides assurance that the company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate practices &
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with company's risk
objectives.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligation and arises principally trade receivables, accruals ,loans and advances
including loan given to employees. The company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each counterparty to a financial instrument. For the purpose of risk control of Trade
Receivables, the customers are grouped as: government organization, institution and corporate customer,
residential and public customers. Credit limits are established for each customer, whereby the credit limit
represents the maximum open amount for one bill cycle.

Other than Trade Receivables, the company practices of dealing only with creditworthy counterparties and
obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults. The company's exposure and credit worthiness of counterparties are continuously monitored and
analysed.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
without incurring unacceptable losses. The company’s Revenue Department manages the liquidity to
ensure sufficient liquidity to meet all liabilities when due, without facing unacceptable losses. Any short term
surplus cash generated by the company, over and above working capital requirements and other operational
requirements including loan and capital commitment, are retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the
extent required) and any excess is invested in interest bearing term deposits to optimize its cash returns on
investment.
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
market economics conditions. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposure within acceptable parameters.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. At the reporting date company had hold following interest
bearing financial instrument: cash and cash equivalent, term deposits and subscribers deposit. The company’s
Revenue Department manage the interest rate risk in order to reduce the financial impact as a consequence
of the interest rate fluctuation. The company has established a policy and procedures to monitor investments
and that support its investment diversification efforts.

(ii) Foreign Currency Risk

The company incurs foreign currency risks on sales and purchases denominated in a currency other than its
functional currency (NPR). The two major currencies giving rise to currency risks are US Dollar (USD) and
Euro (Euro), however the company has not entered into any forward contracts to mitigate such risks. The
company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impact the company's transactions/
events relating to settlement of interconnection transactions, USD Term Investment and import of inventories,
property plant & equipment and services.

The company closely monitor market economic activity and currency fluctuations in the market so as to
respond effectively to the changes in exchange rate.

7.5 Fair Value Measurements of Assets and Liabilities

In accordance with NFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’, the company categorises assets or liabilities carried
on the reporting date at fair value using a three level hierarchy. Assets or liabilities categorised as Level 1 are
valued using quoted market prices and therefore there is minimal judgement applied in determining fair value.
However, the fair value of Assets or liabilities categorised as Level 2 and, in particular, Level 3 is determined
using valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation models. In addition, in
line with market practice, the company applies credit, debit and funding valuation adjustments in determining
the fair value of its uncollateralised assets. A description of these adjustments is set out as under.

These valuation techniques involve management judgement and estimates to the extent of which depends
on the complexity of the assets or liabilities and the availability of market observable information. Valuation
techniques for Level 2 financial instruments use inputs that are based on observable market data. Level 3
input for assets or liabilities are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
valuation, is not based on observable market data. Determining the appropriate assumptions to be used for
Level 3 assets or liabilities require significant management judgement. Further details of the company’s Level
3 assets or liabilities and the sensitivity of their valuation including the effect of applying reasonably possible
alternative assumptions in determining their fair value are set out wherever required.

Valuation of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three
levels according to the quality and reliability of information used to determine the fair values.

Level 1

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 predominantly comprise equity shares, treasury
bills and other government securities.

Level 2

Level 2 valuations are those where quoted market prices are not available, for example where the assets
or liabilities is traded in a market that is not considered to be active or valuation techniques are used to
determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market
data. Examples of such assets or liabilities include most over-the-counter derivatives, financial institution
issued securities, certificates of deposit and certain asset-backed securities.

Level 3

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the valuation,
is not based on observable market data. These are valued using various valuation techniques that require
significant management judgement in determining appropriate assumptions, including earnings multiples and
estimated future cash flows.



7.5.1 Assets and Liabilities Carried at Fair Value

NPR

Assets and Liabilities Quoted market Unobservable

Carrying amount Observable Inputs

FY 2075-76 prices inputs
(Fair Value) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Land 21,763,356,592 21,763,356,592
Building 3,264,855,333 3,264,855,333
Cash and Cash Equivalents 19,007,031,019 15,545 19,045,334,219
44,035,242,944 15,545 44,073,546,144 -
NPR

Assets and Liabilities Quoted market Unobservable

Carrying amount Observable Inputs

FY 2074-75 prices inputs
(Fair Value) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Land 18,655,397,334 18,655,397,334
Cash and Cash Equivalents 23,410,997,112 1,426,308 23,195,599,475
42,066,394,445 1,426,308 41,850,996,809 -

Land revaluation has been periodically done to report the value of the land at fair value. Value of similar land
in similar locality is considered for fair value determination. (also refer note 2)

Building and physical structure has been periodically revalued to report at the fair value. The Depreciated
Replacement Cost (DRC) approach has been used for fair value determination of building and physical
structures.

Cash and cash equivalent is also presented at the fair value. The cash balance is the quoted price of
the denominated currency. Further, the company considers the short-term deposits maintained with the
commercial banks to represent the fair value of the balances.
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8. Employee Benefits

Accounting Policies
Short-term employee benefits, such as salaries, paid leave, performance-based awards and social security
costs are recognised over the period in which the employees provide the related services.

The company operates a number of post-retirement benefit schemes for its employees including both defined
benefit and defined contribution plans.

1. A defined benefit scheme is a plan that defines an amount of pension, gratuity or leave compensation
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, dependent on one or more factors such as age, years
of service and salary.

2. Adefined contribution plan is a plan into which the company pays fixed contributions; there is no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions.

Full actuarial valuations of the company’s defined benefit schemes are carried out periodically with interim
reviews in the intervening years; these valuations are updated by qualified independent actuaries. For the
purposes of these annual updates scheme assets are included at their fair value and scheme liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using actuarial assumptions. The defined benefit scheme liabilities are
discounted using rates equivalent to the market yields at the reporting date. The company’s profit or loss charge
includes the current service cost, past service costs, net interest expense (income), and plan administration
costs that are not deducted from the return on plan assets. Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense (income) and net of the
cost of managing the plan assets), and the effect of changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) are reflected
immediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income are
reflected immediately in retained profits and will not subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.

The company’s Statement of Financial Position includes the net surplus or deficit, being the difference
between the fair value of scheme assets and the discounted value of scheme liabilities at the reporting date.
Surpluses are only recognised to the extent that they are recoverable through reduced contributions in the
future or through refunds from the schemes. In assessing whether a surplus is recoverable, the company
considers its current right to obtain a refund or a reduction in future contributions and does not anticipate any
future acts by other parties that could change the amount of the surplus that may ultimately be recovered.

Explanatory Notes

8.1 Short Term Employee Benefits

NPR
. 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Employee Benefit Expenses Current Year Previous Year

Short term employee benefits

Salaries & Wages

1,514,870,684

1,480,909,429

Allowances 1,272,011,856 1,229,731,164
Uniform Allowances 43,528,000 42,675,000
Overtime Allowances 31,940,661 29,097,514
Medical Expenses 363,678,711 350,595,087
Telecom Allowances 411,614,085 728,157,301
Employee Statutory Bonus 993,227,525 465,311,200
Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Provident Fund 146,422,498 141,230,797
Contributory Pension Fund 18,250,482 13,820,632
Life Insurance 90,766,461 89,003,635
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Defined Benefit Plan

Leave Encashment 169,991,080 245,382,816
Pension and Gratuity 1,353,018,473 1,230,966,346
Total 6,409,320,514 6,046,880,921

8.2 Post-Employment Benefits

The company has both defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans as post-employment benefits.
8.2.1 Defined Contribution Plan
The company operates three defined contribution plans.

1. The provident fund contribution, where fixed percentage of ten percent of the salary (basic plus grade) is
paid into the fund as and when the salaries become due.

2. Contributory pension fund, which is in lieu of pension and gratuity whereby company pays fixed amount
to the individual pension fund account that will be available to the employees on retirement

3. The company contribute ninety percentage of insurance premium of the employees life insurance
policies. The amount of policy is different as per the level of employees. The insured amount and the
bonus accrued thereon shall be available to the employees on retirement.

8.2.2 Defined Benefit Plan

The company provides pension for employees completing 20 years of service with the company and gratuity for
employees who have not completed 20 years of service at the time of retirement / severance.The employees
are also entitled for compensatory leave payments at the time of retirement.

The company has been conducting actuarial assessment of defined benefit plans periodically. The discounted
value of liabilities net of benefit plan investments is presented as noncurrent liabilities. The current service
cost, past service cost and net interest (net of unwinding interest and return on plan assets) are charged to
statement of profit or loss. The net actuarial remeasurements are charged or credited to the statement of
other comprehensive income.The company pays retirement benefits partly from the plan assets and partly
directly from the company. The company also pays the retirement benefits in advance as prepayments up to
maximum of 7 years pension. Such prepayments have been deducted from the closing actuarial liabilities.

The defined benefit plans expose the company to actuarial risks such as longer than expected longevity
of members, lower than expected returns on investments and higher than expected inflation, which may
increase the liabilities or reduce the value of assets of the plans.

NPR
Defined Benefit Plan Obligation ngrgr?ti?ez: Pre:\;/?(.)%:as.%(?a?
Opening DBP Obligations 14,576,445 052 12,357,797,336
Current Service Costs 531,657,950 562,574,630
Finance Cost 1,242.340,100 1,070,906,766
Benefits Paid (442,401,248) (448,029,137)
Actuarial Re-measurements (922,780,397) 1,033,195,457
Closing DBP Obligation(A+B) 14,985,261,457 14,576,445,052




NPR

Defined Benefit Plan Assets

31.03.2076
Current Year

32.03.2075
Previous Year

Opening DBP Assets

Contribution during the period
Investment returns

Benefits Paid

Less return booked in previous years
Actuarial Re-measurements

Closing DBP Assets

Net Defined Benefit Plan Obligation
Charged / (credited) to P&L
Charged / (credited) to OCI

3,270,801,288
230,538,711
(57,548,448)
20,449,786

3,464,241,337

11,521,020,120
1,523,009,553
(922,780,397)

3,177,630,039
196,395,961
(63,960,985)
(39,263,727)

3,270,801,288

11,305,643,764
1,476,349,163
1,033,195,455

NPR
Defined Benefit Plan Obligation — Pension and 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Gratuity Current Year Previous Year
Opening DBP Obligation 13,308,179,500 11,237,421,499
Current Service Costs 464,794,290 412,423,760
Finance Cost (unwinding) 1,139,212,680 975,674,820
Benefits Paid (from Plan Assets) (57,548,448) (63,960,985)

Benefits Paid (by the company)
Benefits Paid (by the company-prepaid)
Actuarial Remeasurements

Closing DBP Obligation(A)

(274,849,168)

(724,835,427)
13,854,953,426

(286,575,051)

1,033,195,455
13,308,179,500

NPR
) . - 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Defined Benefit Plan Obligation - Leave CUTETTN e Previous Year

Opening DBP Obligation

Current Service Costs

Finance Cost (unwinding)
Benefits Paid (by the company)
Actuarial Remeasurements
Closing DBP Obligation (B)

1,268,265,552

66,863,660

103,127,420
(110,003,631)
(197,944,970)
1,130,308,031

1,120,375,837
150,150,870
95,231,946
(97,493,101)

1,268,265,552

Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial valuation of defined benefit plan obligation is done on the basis of the following assumptions.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Discount Rate 8.5% 8.5%
Salary Escalation Rate 7% 7%
Pension Inflation Rate 4% 4%

Expected Return on Assets

Mortality Rate

Spouse age difference
Withdrawal Rate 20-58
20-58 years Age<45
20-58 years Age>45

7%

Nepal Assured Mor-
tality 2009

5 years

5%
0%

7%

Nepal Assured Mor-
tality 2009

5 years

5%
0%
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Sensitivity Analysis (Pension & Gratuity)

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Discount Rate
Effect on DBO — increase of discount rate by 1% -12.6% -12.8%
Effect on DBO — decrease of discount rate by 1% 15.7% 16.1%
Salary Escalation Rate
Effect on DBO — increase of salary rate by 1% 5.2% 5.5%%
Effect on DBO — decrease of salary rate by 1% -4.7% -5.0%
Pension Inflation Rate
Effect on DBO — increase of pension inflation rate by 5% 10.0% 10.1%
Effect on DBO — decrease of pension inflation rate by 5% -8.5% -8.5%
Sensitivity Analysis (Leave Obligation)

FY 2075-76
Discount Rate
Effect on DBO — increase of discount rate by 1% -7.7%
Effect on DBO — decrease of discount rate by 1% 8.7%
Salary Escalation Rate
Effect on DBO — increase of salary rate by 1% 8.8%
Effect on DBO — decrease of salary rate by 1% -7.9%

Share Capital

Accounting Policies

The company applies NAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ to determine whether funding is either a
financial liability (debt) or equity. Issued financial instruments or their components are classified as liabilities
if the contractual arrangement results in the company having a present obligation to either deliver cash or
another financial asset, or a variable number of equity shares, to the holder of the instrument. If this is not the
case, the instrument is generally an equity instrument

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, from
the proceeds.

Dividends and other returns to equity holders are recognised when paid or declared by the members at the

AGM and treated as a deduction from equity.

Explanatory Notes

The company’s registered capital structure is as follows:

NPR
. 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Share Capital Current Year Previous Year
No of Shares
Authorised 250,000,000 250,000,000
Issued 150,000,000 150,000,000
Paid Up 150,000,000 150,000,000
Face Value 100 100
Share Capital
Authorised 25,000,000,000 25,000,000,000
Issued 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000
Paid Up 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000
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10.

11.

The shareholding pattern on the company is as follows:

NPR

Shareholding Pattern FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
The Government of Nepal 91.49% 91.49%
Citizen Investment Trust (CIT) 0.03% 0.03%
General Public 8.48% 8.48%
100.00% 100.00%

Reserve and Surplus

Accounting Policies
Deferred Tax Reserve

It is company'’s policy to appropriate the equivalent portion of the deferred tax assets when a net deferred tax
asset arises. In event where, deferred tax liability arises such amounts are reclassified within the equity to
retained earnings.

Revaluation Reserve

Land

The company has adopted revaluation model to present the value of its freehold land properties. The upward
movement in the value of the land is adjusted by creating an equivalent amount of revaluation reserve. In
the cases where there is decrease in the value of the land such decrease is first charged to the revaluation
reserve to the extent reserve is available and remaining is charged to profit and loss as impairment.

Building and Physical Structure

The upward movement in the value of building and physical structure is adjusted by creating an equivalent
amount of revaluation reserve. The additional depreciation on revalued amount due to revaluation is transferred
to other comprehensive income.

Explanatory Notes

NPR

Retained Earning 48,530,287,693 60,510,156,737
Revaluation Reserve 21,953,725,297 18,088,470,531
Deferred Tax Reserve 6,427,468,562 6,066,490,432
Fair Value through OCI Reserve - -
76,911,481,552 84,665,117,700

Movements in the reserves are given in detail in Statement of Changes in Equity.

Revenue from contract with customers

Accounting Policies

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to the customer at the
consideration which the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange of those products or
services, net of any taxes / duties, discounts.

When determining the consideration to which the Company is entitled for providing promised products
or services via intermediaries, the Company assesses whether it is primarily responsible for fulfilling the
performance obligation and whether it controls the promised service before transfer to customers. Revenue
is recognised when, or as, each distinct performance obligation is satisfied.

The company follows the following 5 stage process in recognition of revenue from contract with customers.

Identify contract with the customer.

Identify the performance obligation within the contract.

Determine the transaction price.

Allocate the transaction price to each of the performance obligations.
Recognise revenue when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied.

a s e
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The main categories of revenue from contract with customers are:

a. Service Revenues
b. Interconnection Services
c. Equipment sales:

Explanatory Notes

Service Revenues

Service revenues mainly pertain to usage, subscription charges for voice, data, messaging and value added
services. Telecommunication services (comprising voice, data and SMS) are considered to represent a single
performance obligation as all are provided over the company’s network and transmitted as data representing
a digital signal on the network.

The transmission consumes network bandwidth and therefore, irrespective of the nature of the communication,
the customer ultimately receives access to the network and the right to consume network bandwidth.

Interconnection Services

Service revenue includes revenue from international services which is revenue from interconnection, roaming
charges for usage of the company’s network by other operators for voice, data and messaging. It also includes
the enterprise lease services. These revenues are recognised on usage basis. The interconnection revenue
and expenses are recognized on the basis of English calendar from 1%t July to 30" June of respective financial
year. The segregation of interconnection revenue and expenses of about fifteen days will have a negligible
financial impact between the financial year.

The company collects ownership fee, TSC and VAT on behalf of the government and therefore, it is not an
economic benefit flowing to the company, hence it is excluded from revenue.

Equipment Sales
Equipment sales mainly pertain to sale of telecommunication equipment and related accessories for which
revenue is recognised when the control of equipment is transferred to the customer, i.e. transferred at a point

in time.

NPR

Revenue from contract with customers

FY 2075-76

FY 2074-75

Revenue from rendering services
Voice
Data
SMS
Others

Equipment sales
Total

Fixed Line
Local/ Domestic
International Trunk
Leased Circuits
IN Service
ADSL
SIP
FTTH
Others
Fixed Line Total

28,074,649,620
7,508,270,092
979,932,233
276,998,629
36,839,850,575
27,732,646
36,867,583,221

FY 2075-76

2,464,870,096
42,176,042
217,428,332
7,392,573
1,024,557,401
292,563
30,404,969
112,973,661
3,900,095,636

29,703,123,229
8,059,189,680
935,149,093
296,163,852
38,993,625,853
29,633,885
39,023,259,738

FY 2074-75

2,803,276,229
61,853,973
187,614,354
6,867,416
1,511,270,640
121,909
7,331,150
141,890,377
4,720,226,048



CDMA
Local/ Domestic
International Trunk
Data
SMS
Others

CDMA Total

GSM
Voice
Data
SMS
International Trunk
Roaming
Others
GSM Total

Interconnection Services
Interconnection - International
Interconnection - Domestic
International Roaming (Sharing)
SMS
Others

Interconnection Services Total

Value Added Services (VAS)
WiMAX Revenue

Total - Revenue from rendering services

591,476,111
488,700
65,319,196
6,479,944
9,413,746
673,177,697

17,853,205,870
5,892,952,455
550,913,451
89,541,589
14,366,372
153,715,410
24,554,695,147

5,843,635,093
910,362,980
256,841,632
178,266,541
895,812
7,190,002,057

491,791,016
30,089,021

36,839,850,575

809,286,215
1,251,938
82,461,577
9,292,175
12,404,367
914,696,272

17,705,451,031
5,977,391,433
593,512,300
115,951,121
14,269,659
141,869,108
24,548,444,652

7,107,961,444
936,170,710
140,661,583
72,939,886

8,257,733,623

508,535,685
43,989,573

38,993,625,853

Recharge Card Discount Effect

The company started providing discount in recharge card (Physical and MPoS) sales instead of commission
expenses w.e.f. 2075/12/01 following the circulars dated 2075/11/14 from Inland revenue Department. The
discount on recharge card of NPR 437,912,889 has been set off from the service revenue during the financial

12.

year.

Finance Income

Accounting Policies

The finance income from the financial instruments are recognised in accordance with NFRS 9.

Explanatory Notes

NPR

] 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Finance Income Current Year Previous Year
Interest on Corporate Bonds 36,470,405 8,000,000
Interest on Term Deposits with Banks 6,385,764,432 5,855,232,555
Interest on employee loan 161,919,213 140,346,572

6,584,154,050

6,003,579,127
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13. Other Income
Accounting Policies
Dividend income is recognised when right to receive payment is established. Other incomes are recognised
when the amounts can be reliably measured and the amount is probable to be received.
Explanatory Notes
NPR
31.03.2076 31.03.2075
Other Income Current Year Previous Year
Dividend Income - -
LQD and others 387,300,745 242,646,092
387,300,745 242,646,092
14. Operational and Maintenance Costs

Explanatory Notes

These expenses include expenses incurred with fixed and mobile communications services arising from the

operation and maintenance of such telecommunication networks.

NPR
Operation and Maintenance Costs erlrgr?t%(%;? Pr e?/ig’;i%;?
Maintenance - Office Equipment 77,960,493 115,641,480
Maintenance - Buildings 184,286,468 154,605,557
Maintenance - Plants/ Machinery 939,218,492 843,194,485
Power, Heating & Lighting 1,238,095,754 1,149,775,193
Fuel for Vehicles 79,159,550 67,932,102
Maintenance vehicles 68,556,842 68,188,845
Freight & Carriages 13,574,282 12,497,466
International IP Lease & Transit Cost 1,623,842,810 1,391,909,673
Cost of Telephone Sets and Other goods 39,886,876 19,679,583
Cost of Cash Card 251,409,609 269,346,246
Inquiry Service Expenses 18,446,482 20,256,609
Value Added Services Expenses 191,903,506 142,735,317
Data Entry Expenses 989,368 815,108

Interconnection Expenses

2,019,554,361
6,746,884,893

2,489,024,117
6,745,601,781

15. Sales Channel, Marketing and Promotion Costs

Explanatory Notes

NPR
Sales Channel, Marketing and Promotion 31.03.2076 31.03.2075
Costs Current Year Previous Year
Commission on Sales 1,099,026,399 1,475,850,892
Advertisement and Trade Promotion 169,149,456 167,177,443

1,268,175,855

1,643,028,335

Recharge Card Discount Effect

The company started providing discount in recharge card (Physical and MPoS) sales instead of commission
expenses w.e.f. 2075/12/01 following the circulars dated 2075/11/14 from Inland revenue Department.. The
discount on recharge card of NPR 437,912,889 has been set off from the service revenue. Thus, sales
commission expenses also decreased by the same amount.
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16. Administrative Expenses

Explanatory Notes

NPR
Administrative Expenses Curienivear  Provious vear
Travelling Expenses 166,295,485 122,062,659
Rates and Local Taxes 61,839,837 35,988,737
Rent and Leasehold Cost of Land and Buildings 434,066,746 383,837,249
Board Meeting Allowance 1,264,000 1,340,000
Other Meeting Allowances and Expenses 46,051,943 48,975,842
Printing and Stationery 40,403,035 43,237,221
Bank Charges 11,656,789 9,865,220
Training Expenses 169,628,146 118,896,884
Hospitality Expenses 22,878,523 21,342,915
Office Furnishing 10,316,200 12,033,069
Insurance 24,762,571 25,130,994
Statutory Audit Fee 2,000,000 1,600,000
Tax Audit Fee 700,000 442,478
Audit Expenses 3,195,252 2,158,523
Postage 1,176,892 1,052,895
Books and Periodicals 5,243,418 5,586,748
Professional fees 2,684,810 89,626,409
Security Expenses 198,860,873 136,047,762
Outsourcing Service expenses 7,556,810 3,807,850
Membership Fee 10,183,447 6,147,021
Telephone Expenses 80,994,227 77,754,764
Anniversary Expenses 10,442,545 12,272,765
Annual General Meeting Expenses 1,033,620 1,956,521
Miscellaneous Expenses 68,330,140 69,338,892

1,381,565,309

1,230,503,418

Explanatory Notes

17. Regulatory Fees, Charges and Renewals

NPR
31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Regulatory Fees, Charges and Renewals Current Year Previous Year

Royalty

Rural Telecommunication Development Fund
Contribution

Frequency Fee

License Fee Expenses

1,473,594,023

736,797,011
1,169,165,896
3,969,035,068
7,348,591,998

1,559,745,034

779,872,517
1,196,927,138

3,536,544,689

The liabilities on account of Royalty at the rate of 4% of service revenue have been provided for as per
Telecommunication Rules, 2054 and contribution to Rural Telecommunication Development Fund (RTDF) at
the rate of 2% of the service revenue as per conditions laid down by the Nepal Telecommunications Authority

(Note 11).

The company pays annual frequency fee to Nepal Telecommunications Authority for using various frequency
Band. The company also pays the variable Frequency fee in relation to GSM License i.e. 0.40% of the GSM

Income which also includes the GSM portion on Interconnection revenue.
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18. Finance Costs

Explanatory Notes
These are the finance costs calculated using effective interest rate on the GSM first renewal fee payable and
Subscriber deposit payable.

NPR

- 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Finance Costs Current Year Previous Year
Unwinding of GSM renewal fee payable 356,652,949 515,419,397
Unwinding of Subscriber deposits payable 60,391,800 (5,739,660)
417,044,749 509,679,737

19. Impairment Costs and Reversals

Accounting Policies

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Impairment of an item of property plant and equipment is identified by comparing the carrying amount with the
recoverable amount. If an individual asset does not generate future cash flows independently of other assets,
recoverability is assessed on the basis of cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset can be allocated.

At each reporting date the company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have been
impaired.

Factors that are considered important and which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

a) Obsolescence or physical damage;

b) Significant changes in technology and regulatory environments;

c) Significant under performance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
d) Significant changes in the use of its assets or the strategy for its overall business.

The identification of impairment indicators, the estimation of future cash flows and determination of recoverable
amount for assets and cash generating units require significant judgement. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is determined. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined at the higher of fair
value less cost to sell on disposal and value-in-use. Generally recoverable amount is determined by means
of discounted cash flows unless it can be determined on the basis of a market price. Cash flow calculations
are supported by past trend and external sources of information and discount rate is used to reflect the risk
specific to the asset or CGU.

Impairment of Financial Assets

NFRS 9 establishes a three-stage impairment model, based on whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk of a financial asset since its initial recognition. These three stages then determine the amount
of impairment to be recognised as expected credit losses (ECL) (as well as the amount of interest revenue to
be recorded) at each reporting date:

1. Stage 1: Credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition — recognise 12 months ECL,
and recognise interest on a gross basis.

2. Stage 2: Credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition — recognise lifetime ECL, and
recognise interest on a gross basis.

3. Stage 3: Financial asset is credit impaired (using the criteria currently included in NAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement) — recognise lifetime ECL, and present interest on a net
basis (i.e. on the gross carrying amount less credit allowance).
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20.

21.

Explanatory Notes

NPR
Impairments/( Reversal of Impairments) erlrgr?t%(cq)e;? Pr e?/?o%i%(%?asr
Property Plant and Equipment (of WiMAX) (13,097,968) 132,930,677
Building 443,743,742
Capital Work In Progress
Prepaid Expenses 1,355,994
Financial Instruments
Trade Receivables 214,646,186 (143,661,654)
Inventory - -
Accruals, Advances and Other Receivables 50,888,600
Total 697,536,554 (10,730,977)

Effects of Changes in foreign currency rates

Accounting Policies
Foreign currency transactions are converted into functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at
the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated in to the reporting currency of
the company using the rates prevailing on the reporting date. The resulting gain or loss due to translation is
taken to statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets are recorded using the rate of exchange prevalent
as on the date of initial recognition and are not subsequently restated.

Explanatory Notes

NPR
Effect of Changes in foreign currency 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
exchange rates Current Year Previous Year
Realized gain / (Loss) 506,288,861 (160,273,995)
Translation gain / (Loss) (419,295,351) 795,829,126
Total Gain (Loss) 86,993,510 635,555,131

Taxes

Accounting Policies

The company applies NAS 12 for accounting and reporting income taxes. Income tax expenses represent
the sum of the current tax and deferred taxes. Current income tax which is payable on taxable profits is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits arise.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in future arising from temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in computation of taxable profit.

It is computed using statement of financial position liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets recognised to the extent that is
probable that the temporary differences or taxable profit will be available against which deductive temporary
differences can be utilised.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is both a legal right of offset and the intention to
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Explanatory Notes

21.1Net Tax Asset / (Liability)

The company’s final income tax assessment has been completed for the Income Year 2071/72 (2014-15). For
the remaining financial years, the assets and liabilities have been recognised and carried as under:

NPR

Financial Year Tax Liability Advance Tax Paid Net T?Iz(lfft\)sllslte;g Cumulative
2072/73 4,564,292,367 5,728,496,567 1,164,204,200 1,164,204,199
2073/74 5,734,012,684 5,785,424,938 51,412,254 1,215,616,453
2074175 5,903,778,849 6,251,947,179 348,168,330 1,563,784,783
2075/76 5,959,365,152 4,804,513,428 (1,154,851,724) 408,933,059

21.2 Current Taxes

Current tax payable (or recoverable) is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
the profit reported in the statement of profit or loss, because some item of income or expense are taxable
or deductible in different years or may never be taxable or deductible. The company’s current tax liabilities
are calculated using provisions of the Income Tax Act, 2058 (2002 A.D.), Income Tax Rules, Directives and
circulars relating thereto as currently applicable in Nepal.

Income Taxes expense

Provision for Tax
For current year
For prior years

Deferred Tax

31.03.2076
Current Year

5,959,365,152

(637,812,249)
5,321,552,903

NPR

32.03.2075
Previous Year

5,851,328,465

(1,409,024,940)
4,442,303,525

21.3 Deferred Taxes

NPR

Particulars FY 2075-76

Carrying Amount

Tax Base

Temporary Diff

Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment

Liability and Provisions
Provision for License Fee
Defined Benefit Plan Prov
Provision for Telecom Allowance
Provision for Staff Bonus

Total

21,544,171,772

723,287,671
11,521,020,120
1,139,771,386
1,458,538,725

Tax Rate

28,126,449,077

30%

Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) - FY 2074-75

Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) -Normal FY 2075-76
Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets)- Ashadh 312076
Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - FY 2075-76 P&L
Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - FY 2075-76 OCI

(6,582,277,305)

(723,287,671)
(11,521,020,120)
(1,139,771,386)
(1,458,538,725)
(21,424,895,207)
(6,427,468,562)
(6,066,490,432)
(360,978,130)
(6,427,468,562)
(637,812,249)
276,834,119
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NPR

Particulars FY 2074-75

Carrying Amount

Tax Base

Temporary Diff

Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Liability and Provisions
Defined Benefit Plan Liability
Provision for Telecom Allowance
Provision for Staff Bonus
Total

20,078,332,860

11,305,643,764
1,363,729,820

26,711,721,977

918,872,073

Tax Rate

30%

Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) —As at Ashadh 31, 2074

Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - FY 2074-75

Deferred Tax liability / (Asset) - As at Ashadh 32, 2075
Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - FY 2074-75 PL
Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - FY 2074-75 OCI

(6,633,389,117)

(11,305,643,764)
(1,363,729,820)
(918,872,073)
(20,221,634,774)
(6,066,490,432)
(4,347,506,855)
(1,718,983,577)
(6,066,490,432)
(1,409,024,940)
(309,958,637)

21.4 Reconciliation of Profit reported in the financial statements and as reported to the

tax authorities

NPR
. . . 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Reconciliation with Tax Profit CUERNEET Previous Year

Profit before tax as per Financial Statements
Net Adjustments under Income Tax Act, 2058
Profit for Tax Purpose

Tax rate

Total

15,079,128,742
4,785,421,765
19,864,550,507
30%
5,959,365,152

21,926,105,352
1,479,208,507
23,405,313,859
25%
5,851,328,465

22. Assets Held for Sale

Explanatory Notes

Company holds dismantled assets, mainly in the nature of maintenance returns and scraps that are in the
process to be sold. In addition to the scraps and dismantled assets there are some assets that are already
notified for auction sale. These assets have been retired from the books and are represented at zero or NPR
1 carrying amount. As per the requirement of NFRS 5 ‘Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operation’, these are to be valued at fair value less cost of sale.

Considering the significance of such assets, which management feels are low in terms of materiality
these have not been recognised in the financial statements. Furthermore, there are practical difficulties
in determining the value of such assets. Management assumes that the impact of such assets in terms of
company’s financial position and performance will be negligible.

There is no discontinued operation of the company.

23. Interest in Other Entities

Accounting Policies
The company follows NFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities’ for disclosing the extent of the
investment, control and influence.
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Explanatory Notes

Interest in Other Entities - Percentage of FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
shareholding

Trishuli Jalvidyut Company Limited 30.00% 50%

Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Limited. 6.00% 6.00%

Vidhyut Utpadan Company Limited. 3.42% 4.10%

Treatment Treatment

Trishuli Jalvidyut Company Limited. Associate Associate

Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Limited.
Vidhyut Utpadan Company Limited.

Trade Investment

Trade Investment

Trade Investment

Trade Investment

The company holds 48.78% of equity investment as at reporting date in Trishuli Jalvidyut Company Limited.
However, the company does not hold control of Trishuli Jalvidyut Company Limited, therefore Trishuli Jalvidyut
Company Limited is continued to be recognized as an associates. The Capital structure of Trishuli Jalvidyut
Company Limited is structured in such a way that the company will ultimately hold 30% and the current equity
holding is just a temporary effect.

24. Earnings Per Share
Accounting Policies
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
Explanatory Notes
NAS 33 ‘Earnings per Share’ requires that earnings per share (EPS) information be presented in the financial
statements. The company’s ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares are traded in a public market and the
company files its financial statements with the Securities Exchange Board of Nepal (SEBON).
NPR
. 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Earnings Per Share Current Year Previous Year
Profit Attributable to shareholders 9,757,575,839 17,483,801,827
Number of Shares (weighted average) 150,000,000 150,000,000
EPS (Basic) 65.05 116.56
There are no instruments of the company, current or prospective that will have any bearing on dilution of
Earning Per Share. Therefore, the company has same basic and diluted EPS.
25. Contingencies and Capital Commitments

Explanatory Notes

25.1Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are potential future cash out flows, where the likelihood of payment is considered more
than remote, but is not considered probable or cannot be measured reliably.

25.1.1 Tax related dispute

25.1.1.1 Income Tax and TDS Related Disputes

The company’s final tax assessment has been completed for the Income Year 2071/72 and the final assessment
order was received on 2076/04/24. The Company opted to appeal against the Reassessment order regarding
Tax Deduction at Source (TDS) and Income Tax and consequently applied for an Administrative Review
with the Director General, Inland Revenue Department on 2076/05/23 by depositing NPR 83,662,881. The
contingent liability of NPR 334,651,525. for Tax Deduction at Source (TDS) and Income Tax and the fine
amount up to the date of settlement would have existed against the company for the year 2071-72, if the
appeal goes against the company.

25.1.1.2 VAT Related Dispute
Reassessment order of Value Added Tax was issued by Large Tax-Payers Office on the Self-Assessment
Tax Return filed by the company for the financial year 2070-71. The Company opted to appeal against the
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order and consequently applied for an Administrative Review with the Director General, Inland Revenue
Department on 2075/03/26 by depositing NPR 8,731,622. Contingent liability of NPR 26,194,866 for Value
Added Tax and the fine amount up to the date of settlement would have existed against the company for the
year 2070-71, if the appeal goes against the company.

25.1.2 Legal Cases

There were 41 numbers major legal cases against the company pending in the court of law during the year.
Liability, if those are decided against the company, could not be assessed reliably; management feels that
such liability would not be significant requiring quantified disclosure.

25.2 Commitments

A commitment is a contractual obligation to make a payment in the future, mainly in relation to leases and
agreements to buy assets such as network infrastructure and IT systems. These amounts are not recorded
in the statement of financial position since the company has not yet received the goods or services from the
supplier. The amounts below are the minimum amounts that the company is committed to pay:

NPR

- - 31.03.2076 32.03.2075
Capital Commitments Current Year Previous Year
Commitment for Civil Works 193,813,617 176,114,890
Commitment for Procurement of Plant & Equipment 30,014,604,354 11,839,076,662

Commitment for rent of Leasehold Premises for BTS - -
30,208,417,972 12,015,191,552

Out of total capital commitment of NPR 30,208,417,972, amount of NPR 18,766,769,584 for procurement of
plant, equipment and services is related with 4G /LTE project.
26. Related Party Disclosures

Accounting Policies
The Company follows requirements of NAS 24 Related Parties and other legal requirements for disclosures
of related party transactions and balances.

Explanatory Notes
26.1 ldentification of Related Party Disclosures
Following has been identified as related parties of the company:

1. The Government of Nepal - which is the principal owner of the company (please refer Share Capital note 9)

2. Directors of the company

3. Key Management Personnel of the company - all personnel level 11 and above are considered to influence
management decision of the company.

4. Relatives of directors and key management personnel

5. Nepal Telecom employee retirement Fund maintained with Citizen Investment Trust(CIT)

6. Trishuli Jal Vidhyut Company Limited

26.2 Transactions with Related Parties
26.2.1 Transaction with Government of Nepal

The company has contributed NPR 25,761,319,701 on account of tax and non-tax revenue to government
treasury. It also paid NPR 7,548,197,250 dividend on equity share investment.

NPR

FY 2075/76

FY 2074/75

Advance Tax including withholding tax
Value Added Tax-Collection Deposited
Telecom Service Charge- Collection Deposited

Ownership Fee- Collection Deposited

4,873,478,679
4,605,286,227
3,898,586,032

579,609,728

6,439,904,318
4,745,021,006
3,135,426,740

572,182,999
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Custom duty —Paid on import 483,148,780 339,126,905

Royalty and RTDF —Liability Paid 2,339,617,551 2,419,145,610
Frequency Fee 1,144,822,845 1,214,183,485
Dividend 7,548,197,250 7,548,197,250
Property Tax 61,839,837 35,988,420
License Fee 6,051,200,000 2,500,000,000
Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) 1,723,730,022 1,108,438,593
Total 33,309,516,951 30,057,615,326

Service charges collection for providing telecommunication services to the Government of Nepal has been
charged on commercial terms.

Regulatory charges provided to the Nepal Telecommunication Authority (an autonomous regulatory body
established by GoN) has been made as per the legal and regulatory requirements.

26.2.2 Directors and Key Management Personnel

During the three years ended 31 Ashadh 2076, neither any directors nor any key management personnel or
any associate or family member (relative) of the directors and key management personnel was indebted to
the company

There have been no material transactions or proposed transactions with directors and key management
personnel or their relatives and associates except for the compensations and/or remuneration paid under the
company’s regulations.

Compensation Paid

a. Board of Directors (BoD)
The Board of Directors have been paid board meeting fees of NPR 1,264,000 during this fiscal year.
There were 42 numbers of Board meeting conducted during this fiscal year. The Chairman and other
members of the Board are paid NPR 4,000 per meeting for Board and Board Level Committees.

The Composition of Board of Directors during the year is as below:

Board Meetings FY 2075-76

SN Name Designation Number of meetings
attended
1 Mr. Mahendra Man Gurung Chairman 42
2 Mr. Dilliram Adhikari Member 16
3 Ms. Kamini Rajbhandari Member 5
4 Mr. Surya Bhakta Pokharel Member 21
5 Ms. Radhika Aryal Member 19
6 Mr. Ramchandra Dhakal Member 21
7 Mr. Dhanraj Gnyawali Member 17
8 Mr. Ramesh Dhakal Member 13
9 Mr. Uttar Kumar Khatri Member 42
10 Mr. Vishnu Prasad Kasaju Member 39
11 Mr. Raj Bahadur Rawal Member 39
12 Ms. Shailja Rai Company Secretary 42

b. Audit Committee
The member of Audit Committee have been paid meeting fees of NPR 220,000 during this fiscal year.
There were 13 numbers of meeting conducted during this fiscal year.
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The composition of Audit Committee during the year is as below :

Audit Committee
Meetings FY 2075-76

S.N. Name Designation .
Number of meetings
attended

1 Mr. Ramesh Dhakal Chairman 3

2 Ms. Radhika Aryal Chairman 6

3 Mr. Ram Chandra Dhakal Chairman/Member 2/3
4 Mr. Dhanraj Gnyawali Chairman/Member 2/3
5 Mr. Uttar Kumar Khatri Member 13
6 Mr. Vishnu Prasad Kasaju Member 10
7 Mr. Gokarna Prasad Sitaula Member Secretary 13

c. Key Management Personnel
Key management personnel, who includes level 11 and above officials, are paid salary and compensation
in accordance with the company’s regulations. The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel
including Managing Director are presented below:

NPR
Key Managerial Personnel Compensation Current Year Previous Year
Short term Employee Benefits 19,922,996 25,795,747
Post Employment Benefits
Other Long term Benefits
Termination benefits
Share based payments
Total 19,922,996 25,795,747

Total Post Employment Benefits includes the Key Managerial Personnel’s post employment benefits as well.

Key Management personnel are also provided with the following benefits and disclosed under short term
employee benefits.

- Benefits as per employees regulation.
- Bonus as per Bonus Act/ regulation.

26.3 Balances with / by Related Parties

e Balances outstanding from the government is shown separately under trade receivables including
expected credit loss (note 7.1.4)

e Balances with the Nepal Telecom employment retirement fund maintained with Citizen Investment
Trust(CIT) is disclosed under Defined benefit plan in Note 8.2.2.

e The equity investment in Trishuli Jal Vidhyut Company Limited and share of profit/(loss) has been disclosed
under Investments in Associates in Note 4. The equity shares investment in Trishuli Jal Vidhyut Company
Limited has been pledged to M/s Nabil Bank Ltd. under consortium project financing. In addition, the
company has given corporate guarantee amounting to NPR 2.30 Billion as well.
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27. Segmental Analysis

Accounting Policies
The company reports on operating segments, based on its service streams. The company’s organization is
structured based on the service lines and products.

The reporting segments of the company are :

Wireless Services

Wireless services segment includes the GSM and CDMA segments. These services cover voice and data
telecom services provided through wireless technology (GSM /CDMA). This includes the value added services
provided through the intermediary on revenue sharing basis. This also includes WiMAX services.

Fixed Line Services

These services cover voice and data communications through fixed-line network and broadband technology
for individuals as well as corporate customers. This includes Land Line (PSTN), ADSL, FTTH and Lease line
data connectivity services.

Treasury

This includes the management of investment, cash and cash equivalent other than directly related with
reported segment. This includes foreign currency denominated investment as well. The surplus funds of the
company as a whole is professionally managed to generate maximum return.

Unallocated
Itincludes expenses / results, assets and liabilities of corporate office of the Company, current taxes, deferred
taxes, and certain financial assets and liabilities, not allocated to the operating segments.
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27.1 Assumptions for Segmental Reporting

1. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole which are not allocable to
a particular segment on direct and/or reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue/
expenses/assets/liabilities”.

2. Revenue is taken on the basis of product line for each services.

3. International services is being provided through the network/infrastructure of Fixed line and mobile
services segments. Inter connection revenue is allocated to Fixed line and Mobile services on estimated
basis before considering inter-connection revenue.

4. Depreciation and Operation and Maintenance expenses are allocated on the basis of Property, Plant and
Equipment for each service.

27.2 Geographical Segments

The company operates from six regional directorates located in six different regions of the country.
However, the services delivered from those regional offices are also managed by centrally located service
directorates(Business Units). Therefore, information on regional segments for the purpose of NFRS 8
‘Operating Segments’ cannot be segregated and the management feels that the costs to develop such
information would be excessive than the benefit that it would derive.

Further, the geographical operation is within the single legal jurisdiction and operational environment.
Therefore, the company assumes to operate in a single geographical segment.

28. Interim Financial Reporting

The company follows NAS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’ for publishing condensed interim financial
statements in the print media. The company also comply the requirements of Security Exchange Board of
Nepal (SEBON), Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE), Companies Act, 2063 by disclosing information in addition
to condensed interim financial statements . The company also published detailed condensed interim financial
statements as per NAS 34 in the company’s website www.ntc.net.np.

The corporate tax has been changed from 25% to 30% by Finance Act, 2075 with effect from Shrawan
01,2075. The impact of such tax rate changes was given in first quarter interim Financial Statements as of
Ashwin 31, 2075. However, during the statutory audit of FY 2074/75 those effects were provided in Financial
Statements of FY 2074/75.
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29.2 Corporate Guarantee

The Company has given corporate guarantee amounting to NPR 2.30 Billion to Nabil Bank Ltd. (Lead Bank
in Trishuli 3B Hydro Project financing) on 7 Shrawan, 2076 for bank financing of Trishuli 3B’s Hydro project.
Also, the company has pledged its 74,10,000 Units share of TJVCL with Nabil Bank Ltd. (Lead bank in Trishuli
3B Hydro Project financing) for the same purpose .

29.3 Tax Reassessment

The company’s final tax assessment has been completed for the Income Year 2071/72 and the final
assessment order was received on 2076/04/24. The company has adjusted the undisputed amount of Value
Added Tax, Tax Deduction at Source (TDS) and Income Tax as Amended Assesment tax amounting NPR
112,574,610 in Statement of Changes in Equity.

29.4Loan Commitment

30.

The company has provided commitment to provide additional loan facility amounting to NPR 2.40 billion to
M/s Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Limited against corporate guarantee of M/s Nepal Electricity Authority on
18 Bhadra, 2076, out of which NPR 400 million was disbursed on 29 Ashwin, 2076.

Prior Period Adjustments and Exceptional Items

Previously reported financial statements and financial statements for the current financial year as reported to
the regulatory bodies has been restated in compliances with the requirements of NFRS.

The following adjustments are made for the identified omissions and misstatements for the financial year
2075-76 as per the provision of NAS 8. Net prior period amount of NPR 13,701,688,070has been adjusted to
the identified financial year. In case where such identification could not be made, adjustment has been made
in the opening equity.

NPR
S.N. Particulars Expenditure Income
1 Excess Telecom Allowance provision for 2074 to 71,400 64,357,308
2075 written back and deficit Telecom Allowance
provision booked
2 Excess Bonus provision for 2074 to 2075 written 2,409,669
back
3 Inventory adjustment of previous year 2,428,794 -
4 TSC/VAT adjustment of Subscriber liability of 59,868,387 12,982,658
ADSL
5 Frequency Fees write back - 52,131,093
6 Operating Income 12,663,635 407,122,061
7 Operating Expenses 148,255,230 24,213,898
8 Depreciation write back of previous year - 2,007,183
9 Impairment of WiMax system up to previous year 147,731,939 3,997,454
10 Prior period error in Foreign Exchange 57,024,072 -
revaluation
11 Employee Salary Adjustment 3,104,369 -
12 Second GSM License renewal fee adjustment 16,565,252,603
13 Unwinding Finance cost of GSM License 2,725,491,034

Renewal Fee Liability

Total
Net Effect

16,996,400,429

3,294,712,359
13,701,688,070

Exceptional items wherever they occur are disclosed separately.
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31. Other Disclosures

31.1Exchange Rates Used

31.03.2076 32.03.2075

Exchange Rates Current Year Previous Year
USD: NPR 109.36 109.34
EURO: NPR 123.34 127.77

31.2 During the reporting period, stock amounting to NPR 42,143,017 was found and listed as inventory which
was previously written off after the physical verification of inventory in FY 2071/72. Thus, NPR 42,143,017 has

been adjusted in Statement of Changes in Equity.

31.3 The figures for the previous period have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to make them

comparable with the current period's figures.

Deepak Subedi
Chairman

Radhika Aryal
Director

Raj Bahadur Rawal
Director

Dilli Ram Adhikari
Managing Director

Dhanraj Gnyawali
Director

Pradeep Raj Upadhyay
Chief Financial Officer

CA. Prakash Jung Thapa
PJ Thapa & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Uttar Kumar Khatri
Director

Kumar Prasad Khatiwada
For Manager

As per our report of even date

CA. Achyut Raj Joshi
A.R. Joshi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Vishnu Prasad Kasaju
Director

Date: Poush 06, 2076
Place: Kathmandu
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